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Civil firms can offer life to inmates on death row

Greater resources provide legal edge

By JAMES KIMBERLY
Houston Chronicle

The future which never looked particularly good for Paul Colella
___________________________________

appeared exceedingly grim in the summer of 1998

He had gone from living in tent on South Padre Island beach

to death row for 1991 double-murder His appeal had been

rejected and his execution date was fast approaching

His salvation came from an unlikely source -- Texas law firm

that specializes in commercial litigation

Locke Liddell Sapp LLP law firm of 425 attorneys threw its

vast resources into an investigation that won Colella reprieve on

the grounds that his trial representation was woefully inadequate

Cameron County prosecutors decided not to seek another trial

and Colella 34 accepted plea bargain that requires him to

serve 20 years in prison Today he looks forward to an

anticipated release in 2012 John Everett Chronicle

large civil law firm helped overturn Paul

Colellas death sentence

Colella is not the first person to be sprung from death row after

thorough investigation conducted by large civil law firm For the

lucky few on death row who receive such help the presence of large law firm can mean the difference between

life and death

think disproportionate number of wins in these cases goes to these large civil firms which just goes to show

you what people with adequate resources can do said Jim Marcus executive director of the Texas Defender

Service nonprofit law firm that represents capital defendants

Law firms not normally associated with death penalty cases have helped overturn death sentences and

convictions in some of Texas most notorious cases

Lawyers with Vinson Elkins LLP conducted the investigation that ultimately exonerated Ricardo Aldape

Guerra for the 1982 murder of Houston police officer

Lawyers with Baker Botts LLP uncovered evidence of an improper relationship between the defense attorney and

the key prosecution witness in the case of Pamela Perillo 47 Perillo left death row and is serving life sentence

in the Mountain View womens prison in Gatesville for participating in the 1980 murders of two men
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lawyer with the New York law firm of Paul Weiss Rif kind Wharton Garrison LLP helped convince the U.S
Supreme Court that evidence of mental retardation had not been adequately considered in the capital murder

case of Johnny Paul Penry 47 who recently was sent back to death row for the 1979 rape and murder of

woman in Livingston

The law firms may not have backgrounds in criminal law but they have things just as valuable --
highly educated

and highly motivated attorneys They also have something that experienced defense attorneys say is lacking in

the Texas criminal justice system money

Someone represented by big firm will always have longer and more detailed and more thorough appeal
than someone who was not Limited resources make difference Period said Andrew Hammel an experienced

capital appellate lawyer who worked with Locke Liddell Sapp on Colellas case

The civil law firms almost always intervene in capital cases during the phase of appeals known as the writ of

habeas corpus It is where condemned prisoners raise claims of constitutional violations and ask the court to

consider evidence related to their case that was not presented at trial

good writ of habeas corpus in capital murder case will include thorough investigation of the defendant and
the crime itself It may require expert witnesses to determine whether the defendant should be spared the death

penalty for some recognized exemption such as mental retardation

Many lawyers who practice alone or in small law firms simply do not have the resources to devote to such

extensive investigations

Its major undertaking said Susan Karamanian another of Colellas attorneys who left Locke Liddell Sapp
to teach at The George Washington University Law School Youre talking about major commitment of

somebodys life when they make commitment to take one of these cases

Texas has attempted to improve the resources available to attorneys who represent capital defendants on habeas
appeals In 1996 state law was changed to guarantee condemned prisoners the right to representation during the

habeas appeal The state now pays an attorney $100 an hour to prepare writ of habeas corpus But the money
is capped at $25000 and that includes money for investigators or expert witnesses

Defense attorneys can receive additional compensation if the appeal reaches federal court

Lawyers complain that the compensation remains woefully inadequate to attract the legal talent necessary to

litigate this complex area of law

Roe Wilson chief of the post-conviction writ division of the Harris County District Attorneys Office disagrees

wish was getting paid $25000 per writ she said

Wilson oversees an office of seven attorneys five of whom work strictly on death penalty cases Wilson

acknowledges that there may have been need for large civil firms to handle death row appeals at one time but

she said that time has passed

dont think the need for them is there anymore We now have very good system in place to appoint habeas
counsel she said

Wilson does not feel outgunned when she goes up against big firm And in her opinion bigger is not always
better for the defendant

Often these people have little or no criminal experience Theyre dealing in an area of law thats new to them
Thats difficult It would be for any attorney she said

Wilson said she is sometimes frustrated by large law firms that pursue every angle in case no matter its
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relevance

They tend to maybe go down rabbit trails she said Because they do have lot of resources theyre able to

continue litigation or try to stretch it out as long as possible but thats their job Thats what they are supposed to

do

As prosecutor Wilson may be satisfied with the representation that death row inmates receive on appeal but

the American Bar Association is not

Robin Maher oversees the ABAs Death Penalty Representation Project which recruits large firms for capital

work The ABA has matched 100 law firms with about as many clients 20 of them in Texas

Were not coming close to filling the need she said

There are more than 3500 people on death row across the country 450 of them are in Texas

We are such small project we cant be effective in all jurisdictions so we tend to focus on places where there

are the most defendants and where the system is most broken Maher said Texas is at the top of our list

The ABA is concerned that states will come to rely on the free representation offered by civil firms and decide not

to provide adequate resources for capital defense

This is not the answer to the problem and it should not be conveyed as the answer to the problem Maher said

Were doing this out of pure desperation because folks are going to be executed without ever getting

competent legal advocate

Maher and others advocate system in which capital defense attorneys are afforded resources comparable to

those at the disposal of the prosecution

Every time crime occurs the government doesnt place an ad in the legal newspaper to say We need

prosecutors and well pay you $30 an hour said Hammel the appellate attorney

Many of the civil attorneys who do this kind of work said they do it because they are concerned about the system
not because of strong feelings about capital punishment

Im convinced the quality of justice that is generally meted out to indigent defendants in these kinds of cases is

not very high We would devote as much or more effort to relatively small or midsize civil case at this law firm

than is devoted to these kinds of capital cases said another of Colellas attorneys Mike Powell of Dallas

Locke Liddell Sapp lawyer who specializes in oil and gas litigation

Scott Atlas of the Houston law firmVinson Elkins said he remains death penalty supporter even though

he helped free Aldape Guerra from death row by uncovering evidence that Houston police had pressured

witnesses to identify Aldape Guerra as the gunman who shot police officer

For some crimes it remains an appropriate punishment he said but only in cases where the defendant received

vigorous defense

think most people on death row are guilty but there are few who are not Atlas said Until we provide them

with quality lawyer we wont know which ones we are talking about
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SIDLEY AUSTIN WASHINGTON D.C

Angie Garcia
League of United Latin American Citizens

Professor Emilio Zamora
University of Houston

FROM Julia
Sullivan

DATE April 18 1997

MORE GOOD NEWS After spending fourteen years nine
months in prison for crime he did not commit including more
than fourteen years six months on death row Ricardo Aldape
Guerra was released from prison on Wednesday and is now in

Monterrey Mexico with his family His release was major
victory for those of us who believed in his innocence and it
occurred only because of the many years of hard work on his case
by Scott Atlas his lead counsel Mr Atlass large and dedicated
team and the many individuals and groups like yours who cared
enough to get involved in Mr Aldape Guerras case and fight for

justice on his behalf hope we will share many more such
victories in the future

cc Scott Atlas
Tom Papson
Ron Flagg
Marisa Gomez

J8597A80.URD 4/18/97 1148am



MEMORANDUM

February 1997

TO Aldape Guerra File

FROM Scott Atlas

RE Results of February 1997 Hearing

Judge Maloney heard lengthy argument today on whether he was bound by the fact findings

made by the federal district court in 1995 He ultimately reserved judgment on that question and

ordered the parties to appear for an evidentiary hearing beginning at 900 a.m on Monday February

17 at the Courthouse Annex 1302 Preston in the 5th Floor Project Courtroom next door to the

courtroom of the 35 1st District Court

Judge Maloney ruled that all the testimony and evidence that was submitted to the federal

habeas court in 1993 would automatically considered part of the record here on the motions filed by

Aldape Guerras lawyers Assistant District Attorney Casey OBrien told Judge Maloney that the

prosecution will call as witnesses only people who did not testif in 1993 He also said that he

would use mostly police officers and possibly one civilian principally to attempt to prove that the

State did not receive an opportunity for fair hearing in 1993 and that there was no intentional police

or prosecutorial misconduct in 1982

SJA
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MEMORANDUM /O f_/f

February 1997

TO Interested Parties

FROM Scott Atlas

RE New Development in Capital Murder Prosecution of Ricardo Aldape Guerra

Due to scheduling concerns Judge Voigt has asked retired Texas Court of Criminal Appeals

Justice Frank Maloney from Austin to assume responsibility for hearing the case against Ricardo

Aldape Guerra

Judge Maloney has scheduled hearing for 900 a.m on Thursday February in Courtroom

734 on the 7th Floor of the Harris County Criminal Courts Building 301 San Jacinto Judge

Maloney has requested argument at that hearing on whether the May 1995 findings of U.S District

Court Judge Kenneth Hoyt should automatically be applied to this case and if not whether the

evidence from the evidentiary hearing held by Judge Hoyt can be submitted as evidence in

connection with several motions filed by Mr Aldape Guerra lawyers arguing that Mr Aldape

Guerra cannot be retried due to the extensive police and prosecutorial misconduct found by Judge

Hoyt

Judge Maloney has tentatively scheduled an evidentiary hearing beginning at 900 a.m on

Monday February 10 in the same courtroom to hear evidence on the motions filed by Mr Aldape

Guerras lawyers unless the rulings at the hearing on February make an evidentiary hearing

unnecessary

SJA

VEHOUO732366



HI
MEMORANDUM

January ____ 1997

TO File

FROM Scott Atlas

RE Aldape Hearing and Trial Schedule

Because of the impact that two-month trial would have had on his schedule Judge Voigt

has selected another judge to take over this case At Judge Voigts request Judge Frank Maloney

who recently completed more than 10 years of service on the Texas Court of CriminalAppeals in

Austin has agreed to hear the case Judge Maloney has the reputation of being very experienced

intelligent and fair judge

Judge Maloney has set the following dates for hearing and trial He will conduct

preliminary hearing on February to discuss the open issues with the parties If he concludes that

an evidentiary hearing is necessary this will be held from April 14 to April 25 Jury selection and

trial will begin on May 19

The hearings and trial will be conducted not in Judge Voigts courtroom but in different

one that has not yet been selected

SJA
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Texas-Mexico Bar Association Presents Highest Award to Scott Aflias

DALLAS TEXAS September 17 1996

At its Fourth Annual Conference held in Dallas Texas September 14-16 1997 the Texas-

Mexico Bar Association presented its highest award to Scott Atlas for his work on the case of

Ricardo Aldape Guerra Mexican national who spent nearly fifteen years on Texas death row

Atlas partner in the Houston office of the law firm of Vinson Elkins successfully established

that Aldape had been denied fair trial in 1983 which resulted in Aldapes death sentence for the

shooting of Houston police officer James Harris Atlas agreed to represent Aldape at the request of

the Mexican government After months of intensive investigation in 1993 Atlas proved to Houston

federal court that Roberto Carasco who was killed in shootout with police and not Aldape had

killed Officer Harris Freed ml 997 after the states appeal Aldape returned to heros welcome in

his hometown of Monterrey Mexico only to die four months later in car accident

In presenting the etched crystal award given in special recognition of outstanding

contributions to cross-border relationships Texas-Mexico Bar Association Co-President Napoleon

CantÆ Cerna of Monterrey Mexico said that Atlass representation of Aldape evidenced great

humanitarian values and excellent legal ability Rona Mears Co-President from Dallas added ----

Accepting the award Atlas said appreciate the Texas-Mexico Bars recognition of fine

team effort by dedicated group of lawyers from Vinson Elkins and other firms only wish our

client had lived to see us win this prestigious award am especially pleased that it comes from

organization dedicated to bringing the people of Mexico and Texas closer together

The Texas-Mexico Bar Association was founded in 1994 to promote greater understanding

and cooperation among lawyers in Texas and Mexico unique bi-national bar association its

offices directorships and committee chairs are held jointly by one lawyer from Mexico and one

from Texas The Association is also known by its Spanish name Barra de Abogados Mexico-Texas

FOR FURTHER CONTACT

Rona Mears Haynes and Boone L.L.P Dallas Texas 214 651-5000

Napoleon Cantü Cerna Santos Elizondo Cantü Rivera Garcia Gonzalez De la Garza
S.C Monterrey Mexico 011-528-363-4851

Scott Atlas Vinson Elkins L.L.P Houston Texas 713 758-49-2



SHORT SUMMARY OF THE CASE OF RICARDO ALDAPE GUERRA

General Background

Ricardo Aldape Guerra was born in Monterrey Mexico on April 1962 Ricardo

has been on death row since October 1982 He remains Mexican citizen

Ricardo grew up with his parents two sisters and brother in small house in

poor neighborhood on the outskirts of Monterrey After leaving school in the 10th grade

he found steady work in factory that produced cardboard boxes -- the same factory

where his father had worked for 33 years

Ricardo worked at the factory for years After his 20th birthday however he left

his low-paying job to look for better work When work proved impossible to find in

Monterrey he decided to go to the United States where he had heard there were jobs

available for Mexican workers In May 1982 he sold his bicycle and with the money he

received he and two friends boarded bus for Laredo Mexico Once in Laredo the boys

crossed the border illegally on train Two days later they arrived in Houston

Ricardo began looking for work the day after he arrived in Houston He eventually

found job installing sheetrock He lived at 4907 Rusk Street in Houston along with the

friends who came with him from Mexico and number of other undocumented workers

in poor high-crime Hispanic community

Ricardo Aldape Guerras capital murder trial

Officer James Harris was killed on July 13 1982 only few blocks from the house

where Ricardo had lived That same night Ricardo was arrested for the murder of

Officer Harris In October 1982 he was convicted and sentenced to death What follows

is brief summary of the evidence presented at his trial that led to his conviction

On the night of July 13th Ricardo borrowed the car of friend Jacinto Lopez to

drive to the store to buy some soda Riding with him in the passenger seat was Roberto

Carrasco Flores

After purchasing some cokes Ricardo drove around the streets of his neighborhood

before going home He was driving fast and at one point came close to hitting



neighborhood teenager George Brown who was walking his dog The teenager waved

down passing police car and Officer James Harris pursued the two men

Meanwhile the car driven by Ricardo and Carrasco Flores had stalled at the

intersection of Walker and Edgewood two blocks from the house at 4907 Rusk There

at approximately 1000 p.m Officer Harris caught up to the two men stopped his car

behind them and got out What happened next was perceived differently by number

of witnesses at trial One fact however was clear one of the men wielding

millimeter Browning semi-automatic pistol approached Officer Harris and shot him three

times in the side of the head Both men then ran down Walker Street As they were

running they passed car carrying Jose Francisco Armijo and his two children The man

carrying the millimeter Browning shot into the car One of the bullets hit Mr Armijo

in the back of his head and he later died

Both Ricardo and Carrasco Flores made their way back to the house at 4907 Rusk

After telling their friends what had happened they left the house and tried to find place

to hide from the police Carrasco Flores hid in the garage Ricardo crouched down
behind horse trailer in the driveway

Meanwhile the police had arrived on the scene where Officer Harris had been shot

Neighbors informed them that they recognized the car Ricardo had been driving as one

that was frequently parked in front of 4907 Rusk More than dozen police officers went

to the Rusk Street address to search for the suspects While several searched inside the

house two officers Lawrence Trepagnier and Mike Edwards searched the back yard As

the two officers approached the garage where Carrasco Flores was hiding at about 1130

p.m he opened fire hitting Officer Trepagnier times in the chest and abdomen

Carrasco Flores then ran around the corner of the house in an attempt to escape but was

shot to death by other officers on the scene

When the police examined the dead body of Carrasco Flores they found the

millimeter pistol which lay by his body where he fell In the morgue police discovered

Harris .357 service revolver wedged between the waistband of Carrasco Flores pants and

his stomach Attached to his belt was military-type magazine pouch containing

magazine loaded with 20 rounds of millimeter ammunition In his pants pockets police

found 11 additional loose rounds of millimeter high-powered ammunition

Ricardo was discovered by Terry Wilson Assistant D.A for Harris County several

minutes after Carrasco Flores was killed Crouching behind horse trailer he put his

hands in the air then laid down on his stomach as Wilson ordered He was then taken

into custody Underneath the trailer police found .45 caliber Datonics pistol
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Once at the police station Ricardo gave the police statement in which he

admitted canying the .45 caliber pistol He swore however that Carrasco Flores had shot

Officer Harris

According to Ricardo when Officer Harris stopped his car he said something in

English that Ricardo did not understand Ricardo thought that Harris wanted him to

approach the police car and place his hands on the hood of the car Ricardo did so

Harris had his gun out pointing it at Ricardo As Ricardo stood by the police car he

heard shots from behind him and saw Harris fall He then saw Carrasco Flores bend over

to take Harris service revolver and both men took off running Both men ran east on

Walker Street Flores ran on the north side of the street and turned north at the next

corner and Aldape Guerra ran down the south side of Walker and turned south at the

next corner

As he was running Ricardo said he heard Carrasco Flores fire his weapon the

millimeter Browning Hoping to discourage Flores from following Ricardo said he took

his .45 from the waistband of his pants and fired it twice in the air

The physical evidence introduced at trial

At trial Houston police homicide detective G.T Neely testified that spent casings

from millimeter bullets were found around the area of Walker and Edgewood streets

where Officer Harris was shot One of these was found in the passenger side of the car

in which Carrasco Flores was seated and were recovered from the wall of house

across the Street from and almost due west of where Harris was shot Neely opined that

the bullets were the same ones that passed through Officer Harris head One
millimeter bullet was recovered from the back of Mr Armijos head

Firearms examiner C.E Anderson testified that in addition to the seven millimeter

casings found by Neely he found six spent millimeter casing and six millimeter bullets

at 4907 Rusk The total magazine capacity of the millimeter pistol was 13-15 rounds

No bullets and only two spent casing from the .45 caliber pistol were found on

Walker Street on the south side of the street No spent casings and no bullets from the

the .45 caliber Datonics were found around the Rusk Street house When the

.45 Datonics pistol was found it contained live rounds of ammunition Anderson

testified that the total magazine capacity of the .45 is only 5-6 rounds
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Lee Cooper the police lab fingerprint analyst testified that he found an

unidentified palm print on the front right quarter of Harris car that was unsuitable for

comparison purposes

Police chemist Amy Parker Heeter testified that after performing trace metal

detection test on Carrasco Flores hands she found pattern of trace metal left on his

right palm that was consistent with the pattern left by Officer Harris .357 service revolver

She also testified that she found trace metal pattern on Carrasco Flores left palm but

that the pattern was inconsistent with the pattern left by the millimeter Browning

Chemist Danita Smith performed trace metal detection test on Ricardos palms

and found no trace metal pattern She also testified that the metal on the gun handle of

the .45 caliber Datonics would not leave trace metal pattern due to the type of metal

on the gun handle

None of the physical evidence presented during the trial linked Ricardo to the

murder of Officer Harris and Jose Armijo Indeed all that evidence indicated that

Carrasco Flores had fired the fatal shots from the millimeter Browning

State eyewitness testimony

The state presented the testimony of five eyewitnesses to the shooting of Officer

Harris Only two of these witnesses testified that they saw Ricardo shoot Officer Harris

None of the witnesses saw gun in Ricardos hands And significantly all of the

witnesses gave descriptions of the shooter shortly after the crime that differed from

Ricardos actual physical appearance and were consistent with the coloring and clothing

worn by Carrasco Flores Thus to assist the witnesses in identifying Ricardo the

prosecutors brought life-sized mannequins of Ricardo and Carrasco Flores into the

courtroom where they remained throughout the trial The mannequins faces were

molded into the likenesses of the two men including the same hairstyles and the clothing

that they were found wearing on the night of the shooting These mannequins remained

in front of each witness as she or he testified about the clothing color and hair length of

the people seen at the crime scene

Jose Armijo Jr was 10 years old when he saw his father killed by bullet from the

millimeter Browning He was seated in the front seat of his fathers car He testified

on direct that while other people were standing by the hood of the police car with their

hands on the hood of the car one man acted like he was scratching his back took out

gun and shot Harris He testified that the man who shot Harris was wearing green
shirt -- like the mannequin that looked like Ricardo Jose testified that after shooting
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Harris Ricardo then ran down the Street and shot into the car where Jose sat with his

father

On cross Jose admitted that he told the police both at the scene of the shooting

and later at the lineup that he could not identify the man who shot his father He also

testified that after he first heard the shots that killed Officer Harris he ducked hiding on

the floorboard of his fathers car with his little sister until the men had already run past

the car

To rehabilitate Jose the prosecution put Marie Estelle Arniijo the boys mother

on the stand She testified that Jose had told her that he knew who had committed the

crime but that he was afraid to tell the police because he thought the defendant would

hurt him

Patricia Diaz was sitting in her car only few feet away from the stalled out Buick

at the intersection of Walker and Edgewood when the shooting occurred Diaz testified

on direct that she only saw one man standing near the Buick and he was pointing toward

the police car She identified that man as Ricardo She further testified that she did not

see anything else because she looked down and away from the scene when she saw what

was happening She did not see anyone shoot Officer Harris She also did not see

Ricardo or Carrasco Flores as they ran away

The state also presented the testimony of two sisters Herlinda Garcia age 15 and

Vera Flores age 16 Both were standing on the street next to the stalled out Buick when

the shooting occurred

Herlinda Garcia testified that after the Buick stalled out Ricardo and Carrasco

Flores got out of the car and asked the girls for boost because their car was messed

up Seconds later the police car pulled up After testifying that both men were out of

the Buick she then contradicted herself by testifying that the two men at that point got

out of their car and walked toward Harris One of the men whom she identified as

Ricardo pulled something out of his pants and shot Harris She could not see what

the man pulled out of his pants

On cross Herlinda admitted that on the night of the shooting she told the police

that the shooter had been wearing brown shirt and brown pants and had blond hair

Her description nearly matched the appearance of Carrasco Flores on the night of the

crime Carrasco Flores had been wearing burgundy shirt and brown pants while Ricardo

had been wearing green shirt and blue jeans Both men had dark hair yet Flores was

commonly known as El Werro which is nickname commonly used for Hispanics who

are light-skinned Literally translated werro can also mean blond-haired As most of
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these witnesses were Spanish-speaking it is quite possible that when they gave their

statements to the police they identified the shooter as Werro In the English translation

this word is translated as blond

On cross Herlinda testified that she saw the man in the brown pants walking
toward the police officer The other man was standing by the police car with his hands

on top of the car As the other man stood with his hands on the hood of the police car
the man in the brown pants walked toward the policeman and pulled something out of

his pants She testified that she never saw anyone shoot the police officer she simply
heard the shots and then took off running

Vera Flores Herlindas 16-year-old sister testified that she was walking away from

the corner of Walker and Edgewood when she heard gunshots She did not see anyone
shoot Harris yet she testified that she knew Aldape Guerra was the shooter

when he started running just seen him shooting down the Street

At police lineup several hours after the shooting Vera was not able to identify

Ricardo She testified at trial that she had recognized him but did not want to say

anything because she was afraid

On cross Vera admitted that in the statement she gave to police only hours after

the shooting she stated that both she and Herlinda had begun walking back to their house

before the shooting occurred In an earlier statement she also told the police that she

saw the driver of the Buick place his hands on the hood of the police car

After the shooting Vera testified that she saw Ricardo running east on Walker
toward the south side of the street away from the scene of the shooting

Hilma Galvan was the most damaging witness to Ricardos case She testified on
direct that she saw Harris stop his car get out and yell at man who had gotten out of

the stalled Buick She saw the man walk toward Harris then heard two shots and saw
Harris fall After the officer fell she heard two more shots

Galvan stated that she never saw gun although she did see flashes of gunfire
She testified that Ricardo was the shooter and that after he shot Harris he turned and

shot at Herlinda and Vera Galvan testified that she had seen Ricardo before and she

recognized him from the neighborhood She also testified that she did not see anyone else

at the scene and was unaware of Carrasco Flores presence

Galvan went to lineup and identffied Ricardo after the shooting In her initial

statement to the police however she also swore that the shooter had blond hair
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On cross Galvan admitted that in the first statement she gave to police she said

that Harris approached the driver and pushed him against the car -- it is not clear from

the record whether it was the police car or the Buick Then she heard the shots and saw

Ricardo running toward her on the north side of Walker She testified that she saw

Ricardo clearly and knew him from the neighborhood yet she described the shooter to

the police as someone with blond hair and wearing dark brown or black shirt and dark

brown pants

Although the state presented the testimony of other witnesses these were the only

eyewitnesses who testified for the state

The defense

In his defense Ricardos trial lawyers presented the testimony of two eyewitnesses

both of whom said they saw Carrasco Flores kill Officer Harris

The first witness Jacinto Vega who was in ninth grade at the time of trial testffied

that he was sitting on Hilma Galvans porch when he saw the Buick drive by real fast

and then stop at the intersection of Walker and Edgewood He testified that when Harris

stopped and yelled something at the driver the driver went over to the police car and

placed his hands on the hood of the car At that time the passenger came around from

behind the driver took something out of his pants and shot Harris The passenger then

started running At that point he Galvan and some other boys all ran inside Galvans

house

Jose Heredia also testified for the defense He was standing next to Hilma Galvan

when the shooting took place He stated that he saw Ricardo walk over to the police car

and place his hands on the hood of the car Then he saw Carrasco Flores shoot the

police officer

In addition to the two eyewitnesses defense attorneys presented the testimony of

two men who lived in the house at 4907 Rusk Jose Manuel Esparza and Jose Luis Torres

Luna Both testified that they were in the house when Carrasco Flores and Ricardo

arrived shortly after the shooting Carrasco Flores arrived first followed by Ricardo

According to both witnesses Carrasco Flares admitted he had just shot police officer

Shortly after Ricardo arrived Jose Luis and Jose Manuel asked Carrasco Flores to leave

the house so that they would not get in trouble
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Jose Luis testified that Carrasco Flores offered him the revolver he had taken from

Harris Jose Luis refused Then Carrasco Flores re-loaded his pistol and stated that he

was going to defend himself According to Jose Luis Carrasco Flores said that he

preferred to be killed than to surrender Both Ricardo and Carrasco Flores then left out

of the back door

Ricardo also testified in his defense He maintained his innocence basically

repeating the story he had earlier told the police

When the Buick stalled out Ricardo testified he got out of the car and asked Vera

Flores and Herlinda Garcia if they had any jumper cables They said they did not so

Ricardo vainly tried again to start the car Harris pulled up in his car moments later

Ricardo got out of his car and heard Harris say Come on Ricardo understood

little English but he thought the police officer wanted him to approach the police car and

place his hands on the hood of the car Harris had his revolver out and was pointing it

at Ricardo

As Ricardo was standing by the police car he heard some shots almost in my
ears Then he saw Harris drop to the ground Carrasco Flores walked up to Harris and

took his gun then both men ran Ricardo ran down the south side of Walker heading

east While running he saw car coming towards him on the street and heard some

shots behind him In panic he fired his gun twice in the air

Eventually Ricardo made his way back to 4907 Rusk When he arrived Carrasco

Flores was already there

The punishment hearing

After the jury found Ricardo guilty of capital murder punishment hearing was

held after which the jury gave affirmative answers to the two special issues that are

prerequisite to assessing the death penalty

At the punishment hearing prosecutors presented several witnesses all of whom
testified about the robbery of the Rebel Gun Store five days before the murder of Officer

Harris According to one of the two gun store customers who testified for the state

Ricardo was one of three men who robbed the gun store on July 1982 the other

witness could not identify him
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According to the witnesses Ricardo was not armed when he entered the gun store

He and another Hispanic man entered the store and went to the back of the store to look

at some guns Minutes later Carrasco Flores entered the store armed with pistol

Ricardo and another man pushed the employees and customers into back room taped

their arms behind their backs and made them lie down on the floor Then while one of

the men watched them the others went through the store and took guns and ammunition

Then they left leaving the customers and employees tied up in the back room unharmed

During the testimony of Teriy Delaney the owner of Rebel Gun Store the state

produced .45 caliber submachine gun with silencer on the end and Delaney testified

that the gun was one of those taken in the robbery The state also produced an Uzi and

Delaney testified that the Uzi was similar although not identical to one of the guns stolen

in the robbery Delaney further testified that the gun found on the ground near Ricardo

the .45 caliber Datonics pistol was taken from his gun store

Finally Lee Cooper fingerprint examiner testified that one of the prints

obtained from objects at the gun store matched one of Ricardos fingers

The defense presentation at punishment was almost non-existent Mrs Francisca

Guerra de Aldape Ricardos mother testified that her son had been raised by her and

had never been convicted of any felonies Her testimony when transcribed covered

pages She was not asked by Ricardos trial attorney to testify about other matters

despite the wealth of good character evidence in Ricardos background

acase4um.Ig
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MEMORANDUM

Februaiy 17 1993

TO All Interested Parties

FROM Scott Atlas

RE Summary of Main Points Raised in Aldape Guerra Brief

have attached the following documents from Ricardo Aldape Guerra

James Collins Civil Action No H-93-290 in the U.S District Court for the Southern

District of Texas Houston Division

an 18-page summary of the main points raised in our brief

pp 1-6 from the brief which provide an introduction and factual overview

of this case

pp 55-62 from the brief which contain our argument that Aldape Guerra

is innocent pp 48-54

our argument that the publicity about undocumented workers and about this

case created hostile environment that made fair trial difficult if not

impossible pp 117-33 and that the prosecutors reinforced this hostile

environment by making direct appeal to ethnic prejudice claiming that

Aldape Guerras status as an illegal alien was factor that the jury could

consider in determining whether to give him the death penalty pp 133-

39 Also attached are the pages from the transcript showing some of the

comments about illegal aliens during jury selection and closing argument



SUMMARY

The following summarizes the principal factual allegations made in the brief

The evidence at trial was not sufficient to convict Guerra

The physical evidence pointed to Carrasco

Carrasco had the murder weapon and the dead

policemans gun there was physical evidence

tying Guerra to either gun and

ii The testimony of the so-called eyewitnesses

placed Guerra south of Harris while the physical

evidence location of the cartridge casings

bullets blood spatters and gunpowder around

the wounds places the shooter close to and

of Harris and

The only State witness who claimed to see the shooting was

10-year-old boy who was in shock after seeing his father shot ii
could not describe or identify the shooter on the night it happened
and iii claimed to have seen the same man shoot his father from

position that made it impossible to see since the boy admitted that

he had ducked under the car dash after supposedly seeing the police

officer shot

The State concealed exculpatory evidence

Witnesses

Witnesses who descnled seeing Guerra with his empty hands

on the police car and Canusco east of Harris at the time of the

shooting and the witnesses were given statement to sign that

omitted both facts and one such witness was jailed

ii Witnesses had the police and prosecutors continually trying to

twist the witness words to create the impression that Guerra

was the shooter with the police threatening to deprive one

such witness of custody of her child if she did not cooperate

iii Another witness told police about seeing Carrasco running on

the north side of Walker where the shooter had to have run
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based on the location of shell casings from the murder weapon
and carrying gun that looked like 9-mm pistol the murder

weapon but the police omitted these facts from the statement

prepared for the witnesss signature

iv different witness saw Carrasco running west on Rusk

carrying gun and coming from the direction of Lenox Street

shortly after the shots that killed Harris but that witness tape

recorded statement was never provided to Guerras lawyers

The tape of the police interview of that witness and other

witnesses on the night of the shooting either at the crime scene

or subsequently at the police station has disappeared

Trace Metal Test

The State never gave Guerras lawyers copy of the results of the

trace metal test on Carrascos hands and told them orally only that

the test results for Guerra were negative and for Carrasco were

positive as to the policemans gun and inconclusive as to the

murder weapon Guerras lawyers were not told before trial that the

pattern on Carrasccis TWa hand matched Harris gun and that the

pattern on the left hand was inconclusive If they had seen the test

results they would have known to conduct their own test on the

murder weapon and compare the results to the pattern found on

Carrascos left hand We will prove that the testimony of the States

expert was wrong that the pattern found on Carrascos left hand

was consistent with the pattern formed by the murder weapon
Demonstrating that Carrasco was left handed and that Guerra was

right handed would have seriously impeached the 10-year-olds

statement to the police on the night of the shooting that Guerra

pulled out gun and shot with his left hand

Suggestive Identification Procedures

Guerra will prove that at the police station late on the night of

the shootings witnesses were allowed to discuss the events among
themselves and compare stories before the lineup number of

witnesses were allowed to see Guerra in handcuffs wearing bags on

his hands during the lineup early the next morning witnesses were

allowed to view it together discuss it amongst themselves and identify

Guerra in each others presence and one witness was permitted to

attempt to pressure others into identifying Guerra as the shooter all

in the presence of police and member of the prosecutors office
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and just before trial the prosecutor showed several witnesses

pictures of Carrasco and Guerra identified Carrasco as dead and

Guerra as the man who shot the cop

To conceal these violations of proper and fair lineup

procedures the police deliberately inserted into many of the

witness statements an inaccurate description of the lineup to

make it seem as if proper procedure had been used

II Then in closing argument the prosecutors insisted that the

witnesses gave statements to the police without conferring with

each other and that proper lineup procedures had been

followed

The prosecutors engaged in misconduct during trial

Appeal to Prejudice Against Illegal Aliens

The prosecutors appealed to prejudice by telling some jurors during
voir dire that they could consider Guerras undocumented status in

evaluating his character at the punishment phase of his trial see the

attached pages of comments by the prosecutor and then in closing

argument told the jury that they should send message to those

people at 4907 Rusk non-English-speaking Hispanics who had

come up from Mexico two of them with Guerra two months before

the shooting that the citizens of Harris County would not tolerate that

type of conduct

Claim that Police Deserve Greater Credibility than Others

During voir dire prosecutor told one juror in essence that if police

officer testified in his capacity as policeman his testimony was
entitled to more credibility than that of other witnesses Most of the

States experts worked for the Police Department and six other police

officers testified about events at the scene including one who

essentially called Guerras two roommates liars after they had testified

that Carrasco came running into their house and confessed to having
shot the policeman

Improper Comments During Voir Dire

During you dire the prosecutors made numerous improper comments

to one or more people selected for the jury
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that police officers testimony deserves greater

credibility than testimony by others and

ii that any failure to testify on the most important day of

Guerras life would be crazy and that they could

wonder why he did not testify

Inferring that Guerra Had Committed Murder that the State Knew
Had Not Happened

After defense witness had testified that he was walking back from

cemeteiy where they had killed woman which he clarified to say

that he was not referring to Guerra the State then pursued line of

questions that portrayed the rumored murder as real and relevant

thus implying that Guerra was involved in that incident even though
at the time the State already knew that the rumor was totally false

Arguing for Death Penalty Based on Association with Supposed
Violent Criminal Who the State Knew to Be Innocent

The State based its argument for the death penalty on Guerras

association with someone who the State accused of armed robbery

even though the accused was innocent and the prosecution knew it

During the punishment phase of the trial two prosecution witnesses

identified one of Guerras former roommates spectator at the trial

named Enrique as participant in gun store robbery in which many

weapons had been taken even though the State knew that one of the

robbery witnesses who did not testify could not identify Enrique and

that Enrique could not have participated in the robbery because he

did not meet the suspects description In police report witnesses

to the robbery had described the suspect as having tattoo of

Mexican caballero on his right arm bicep Enrique had no tattoos
The prosecutor then argued that Enrique was the brother of one of

Guerras most important witnesses another roommate implied that

these friends and former roommates of Guerras were crooks and

encouraged the jury to look at Guerras friends as way of telling

what kind of person he is presumably referring to the special issue

on future dangerousness during the punishment phase of trial The

State arrested Enrique during trial but dropped charges against him

many months later after realizing that the absence of tattoo made
it impossible for the State to successfully prosecute
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Macabre Mannequins

The prosecutors produced two life-like mannequins of Guerra and

Carrasco and placed them on display directly in front of the july

during the entire trial They were clothed in the same garments worn

by the two men on the night of the crime with the Carrasco

mannequin wearing clothes stained with blood and ripped with bullet

holes thus attempting constantly to persuade the ju that Carrasco

and Guerra were two of kind One of the jurors said that the

mannequins were eerie and affected her tremendously and that after

being away from them for time she began to realize that Guerra

was probably innocent

Encouragement of Witnesses to Testify that They Were Afraid of

Guerra or afraid to Testify

The State reinforced the notion that Guerra was dangerous by

repeatedly encouraging witnesses to testify that they and others were

afraid to testify With as many as 20 or 30 police officers in the

courtroom for part of the trial and five to ten police officers during

the rest of the trial this created perception that Guerra was

violent and dangerous person and that the police thought he was guilty

and deserved to die

False Claim that Five Witnesses Identified Guerra as the Shooter

The prosecution insisted during closing argument that five of the

States witnesses had identified Guerra as the man they saw shoot and

kill Harris and then shoot into Armijos car and that all five without

any uncertainty had identified Guerra in the lineup as the killer of

both Harris and Armijo But only the 10-year-old consistently testified

that he saw Guerra shoot Harris and he was the only one who

claimed to have seen Guerra shoot at his father although he finally

admitted that he had ducked under the dash before his father was

shot and did not come back up until after the man had already shot

his father and run to the end of the block

Reckless and Unsubstantiated Accusation that Defense Witness was

High on Drugs

Without evidence the prosecutors accused key defense witness of

being high on drugs or alcohol During cross examination the

prosecutor had asked this witness if he had been drinking alcohol or
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smoking anything In closing argument the prosecutor referred to this

witnesses as Rip Van Winkle from Sleepy Hollow and stated that

think he was probably under the influence of some type of alcoholic

beverage or narcotic drug

Improper and Unfounded Accusation that Two Defense Witnesses

Lied

During the cross-examination of two key defense witnesses the

prosecution gave false unsworn testimony by asking if it was not true

that at some time before trial each witness had told the prosecutor

something that contradicted their trial testimony In one instance the

prosecutor claimed that the witness told police that Guerra was not

even present at the time of the murder even though the police

reports say nothing about this

Offering Knowingly False Testimony that Two Other Defense

Witnesses Lied

The prosecutor accused two of Guerras roommates of either lying in

their trial testimony or lying to police officer on the night of the

shooting The two witnesses had testified that they were at 4907 Rusk

when Carrasco came into the house with two pistols and confessed

that he had killed policeman police officer later testified that

both men had told him that they had been out of the house until he

saw them after Carrasco had been killed in the shootout with police

But the prosecutor had in his file statement from another police

officer who had interviewed one of the men at the house before the

shootout and been told that the men had remained at the house when

others had left earlier in the evening

Improper Invocation of Religion

The prosecutor told the jury during closing argument on punishment

that the Bible commands the jury to impose the death penalty on

Guerra

Appeals to Emotion During Guilt-Innocence Phase

During the guilt-innocence phase the prosecutors repeatedly

attempted to divert the jurys attention from the facts to emotion

During voLr dire the prosecutors repeatedly claimed that they

represented not only the State but also the family of Officer Harris
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Near the end of their case in the guilt-innocence phase the prosecutor

introduced five grizzly autopsy photographs of Harris the last three

showing rods entering one side of his face and exiting the opposite

side Then they called Harris widow to the stand and asked her to

describe her life with her dead husband his qualities as father and

husband and to tell the last words she ever heard him say which were

love you In closing argument the prosecutor again stated that he

represented Officer Harris Mr Arniijo and their families and

described Harris as good man and good member of the community
Earlier in the trial the State had called Mrs Armijo who described

how her 10-year-old sons behavior had changed since the death of

her husband and how he had become unhappy and no longer wanted

to go out and play

As shown by the attached pages pp 110-26 media stories reveal that the

trial occurred in an unusually hostile environment

Record Number of Police Officers Died in 1982

Harris was the fourth police officer to die in the line of duty that year
the highest number killed in the line of duty for any full year since

1917 and tieing Chicago for the U.S city with the highest number of

officers slain in the line of duty Harris funeral received major

attention in the news media

Extensive Media Coverage of Shooting by Illegal Alien

Almost 100 TV reports about the Harris shooting were carried on the

local stations Numerous newspaper stories referred to Guerra as the

suspected illegal alien number of jurors had followed the

investigation in the press

Blaming illegal Aliens for Crime Economic and Social Problems

Generally speaking many Houston residents especially non-Hispanics

blamed undocumented immigrants for increases in crime displacement

of American workers and excessive reliance on public welfare

programs There were only two Mexican-Americans among the 90

people questioned during voir dire but the State struck both
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Blaming illegal Aliens for School Finance Problems

Many Texans blamed illegal aliens for placing an unprecedented

financial strain on the U.S school system In June 1982 the U.S

Supreme Court held that children of
ifiegal

aliens were entitled to

free public school education Several citizens selected for the july

expressed their reservations about Guerras illegal status and the

Supreme Court decision They insisted they could give him fair trial

but their comments raise serious doubt about their true objectivity

The trial court in that case had made extensive fact findings and

concluded that these undocumented children were disadvantaged

from among other things undeniable racial prejudice

Fear of Immigration Reform

During the months before the trial the U.S Congress was considering

the Immigration Reform Control Act of 1982 which according to

Bill Clements would change the direction of this State if it became

law This was the bill that later passed and provided for penalties

against employers who knowingly hire
illegal aliens and an amnesty

program Governor Clements reportedly said that if the bill passed
Texans could wake up some morning and find millions of additional

Mexican nationals and other aliens living in their midst and

dramatically altered quality of life Nationally syndicated columnist

George Ann Geyer argued that massive uncontrolled immigration

from Mexico and Central America eakens and may perhaps

eventually destroy the fabric of nationhood that holds the American

people together

Blatant Ethnic Prejudice

Houston newspapers published magazine interview with Clare Booth

Luce who warned that invading aliens posed greater threat than

the atom bomb and that soon there will probably be as many
Mexicans in Texas as there are natives She said that they are

coming in with wives and sisters and nieces who get pregnant

immediately because they can then become American citizens and

go on relief She said that in the 1800s the U.S had absorbed 40

million immigrants But the vast majority. were white They were

not black or brown or yellow
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Study on Economic Burden on U.S Welfare System Caused by fliegal

Aliens

Just before Guerras trial began on October an article published

on October and follow-up published on October 11 reported on

study by group opposed to immigration reform warning that

ifiegal aliens are growing burden on the welfare system The

study claimed to have evidence indicating that illegal aliens pay less

in taxes than they get in benefits and are applying for and receiving

hundreds of millions of dollars worth of services at the same time

these programs are being cut for disadvantaged Americans

KKK Demonstration Against Illegal Alien Crimes

As an indication that the jurors were infected by the publicity

surrounding the trial and the alleged consequences of having illegal

aliens in the community the KKK demonstrated outside the Harris

County Courthouse building following Guerras sentencin carrying

number of signs saying Houston will not tolerate illegal alien

crimes Guerra got justice and no sympathy for cop killers

Massive Police Presence Sent Message that Guerra was Dangerous

and Deserved to Die

Throughout the trial up to 10 off-duty policy officers in full uniform

constantly attended the trial assuming prominent positions on the

front rows of the gallery During the first and last days of the guilt

phase and the last day of the punishment phase 20 to 30 uniformed

police officers attended occupying 50% of the chairs in the gallery

Combined with the testimony by witnesses who said that they feared

Guerra this sent the jury message that Guerra was dangerous and

that the police took special interest in the trial believed Guerra

guilty and wanted him to be given the death penalty

Appeal to Ethnic Prejudice

During jury selection the State incorporated the negative connotations

associated with the term illegal alien into its questioning of numerous

members of the venire including several who were selected for the jury By

saying that his status as an ifiegal alien could be used as some indication of

the type of person he is the State inferred either that illegal aliens are more

likely than others to commit acts of violence in the future or that
ifiegal

aliens are more deserving than others to receive the death penalty Then
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in closing argument the prosecutor told the jury to send message to the

nesidenth of 4907 Rusk were all illegal aliens that the citizens of

Harris County will not tolerate the conduct of which Guerra was accused

We will show that the jurors discussed Guerras undocumented status during

deliberations in the guilt-innocence stage This was reprehensible and

inexcusable attempt by the State to appeal to juror prejudice already

heightened by the media coverage described above

The investigative procedures employed by the police and prosecution were

so suggestive that they were fundamentally unfair and resulted in identifications of Guerra

that were unreliable

Police Intimidation of Witnesses

Police began intimidating witnesses at the crime scene even before

the witnesses began providing their initial police statements Several

witnesses were handcuffed at the scene and at least one witness was

threatened with the loss of custody of her child if she did not

cooperate

Letting Witnesses See Guerra in Handcuffs

Police officers allowed Guerra handcuffed and with paper bags over

his hands to be seen by witnesses at the police station before the

lineup was held suggesting that Guerra was the person who should

be identified as the shooter

Improper Lineup Procedures

Suggestive Lineup

At the lineup Guerra was the only participant with collar

length hair which was the description of the shooter initially

given to police by several witnesses One of the men in the

lineup had previously been arrested by police at the crime

scene and shown to witnesses who insisted that he was not the

shooter

ii During the lineup several witnesses verbally identified Guerra

as either the driver the passenger or the shooter in manner

that was audible to all the other witnesses present thereby

placing him at the scene The witnesses knew that the other

suspect Carrasco was dead which left Guerra as the only live
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suspect who could be charged In at least one instance an

HPD Detective openly solicited an identification in the presence

of other witnesses and several witnesses were pressured by

another witness to identify Guerra as the shooter in the

presence of police during the lineup

Suggestive Reenactment

On the morning of July 22 nine days after the shooting police

gathered together several of the States witnesses to conduct

walk-through or reenactment of the shooting In the presence of

other so-called eyewitnesses one witness Galvan radically changed

her version of the shooting and second witness Flores identffied

Guerra as the shooter for the first time claiming that she had not

done so at the original lineup because she thought enough other

people had already done so

Suggestive Mannequins/Prosecutors Brand Guerra as the Man Who
Shot the Cop

On the weekend before the trial several of the States witnesses were

shown the mannequins and allowed to discuss the facts of the case

in each others presence By dressing and grooming the life-like

mannequin of Guerra as he appeared on July 13 the prosecutors

ensured that the witnesses could easily frame their identification

testimony to correspond to the mannequin of Guerra and avoid the

confusion that the witnesses earlier statements had revealed With

the mannequin of Carrasco wearing bloodied bullet-riddled shirt

it was obvious which of the two mannequins represented someone who

was dead and thus which one was still alive We will prove that the

prosecutors left nothing to chance showing several of the witnesses

pictures of Carrasco and Guerra identifying Carrasco as dead and

describing Guerra as the man who shot the cop

Unremitting Barrage of Suggestive Procedures and Comments by the

State

By the time they got to trial the witnesses had been subjected to an

unremitting barrage of suggestive tactics and comments by police and

prosecutors clear signals concerning which of the two witnesses at the

scene was still alive and available for prosecution and numerous

opportunities to influence each others recollections
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Stories of the So-Called Eyewitnesses Contradicted the Physical

Evidence and Changed Over Time

As result of these undue influences the stories of the States

so-called eyewitnesses contradicted the irrefutable physical evidence

that Carrasco not Guerra was left-handed and that the shooter fired

in mostly westerly direction while the five so-called eyewitnesses had

the shooter firing northward In addition each witness description

of what happened became more detailed from one teffing to the next

and included fundamental inconsistencies over time

Only Guerras Witnesses Gave Initial Statements Consistent with the

Physical Evidence and with Their Trial Testimony

The only witnesses whose initial statements were consistent with the

physical evidence and with their own and Guerras trial testimony were

two defense witnesses Jacinto Vega and Jose Heredia and Guerra

Their statements on the night of the shooting were given before any

of the witnesses had talked to Guerras lawyer in fact before Guerra

even had lawyer

Stories of the So-Called Eyewitnesses Contradicted Each Other

The stories of each of the five so-called eyewitnesses were materially

inconsistent with each other in terms of where the Buick came from

how many people were in it where the witnesses were located before

the shooting where the non-shooter started moved and ended before

the shooting where Harris was located immediately before the

shooting what the shooter looked like where the shooter reached to

pull his gun the location of Guerras hands just before the shooting

seeing the Browning 9-mm
pistol

before the shooting and statements

made by Harris before the shooting

Ineffective Assistance of Counsel Guerras attorneys provided ineffective

assistance throughout the entire trial process

Inadequate Pretrial Investigation

They failed to conduct prompt and adequate pretrial investigation

and failed to analyze the States evidence to ascertain the inherent

inconsistencies between and among the States witnesses and the

physical evidence They were appointed about six and one-half weeks

before trial began During that period the lead attorney had one-
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week trial The junior attorney had never tried capital case and had

only been in practice for three years They did not review the police

file until August 19 more than month after their appointment and

only 11 days before trial began They did not request the

appointment of an investigator until August 13 almost month after

the appointments and the request was not granted until August 19

On August 13 they filed Motion for Continuance describing their

time problems and
insisting

that forcing them to go to trial within six

weeks could work to Guerras detriment The resulting shortage of

time made it even more imperative to undertake prompt and

intensive investigation using investigators and experts extensively

After four or five weeks of july selection on the first day of testimony

they filed another Motion for Continuance which the court denied

They hired an investigator but used him to question only three or

four witnesses with no apparent lawyer follow-up If they had

thoroughly investigated they would have found the additional witnesses

identified in the brief and exposed the deficiencies in the States

investigation and its witnesses Much of this failure was due to lack

of information as result of police withholding of exculpatory

evidence

Failure to Consult Experts

They failed to consult and retain independent experts such as

ballistics and firearms expert who could have determined the location

of the shooter and thereby refuted the testimony of every so-called

eyewitness ii trace metal expert who could have determined that

the pattern on Carrascos left hand was consistent with the pattern left

on the murder weapon suggesting that the 10-year olds description

of left-handed shooter might have been referring to Carrasco iii

fingerprint expert who could have determined whether the smudged

print found on the police car belongs to Guerra and whether the

shooter had left print on Harris holster when Harris gun was

taken iv chemist who could have determined whether gunpowder

was present on the right rear shoulder of Guerras shirt substantiating

Guerras claim that he heard the sound of Carrascos gun over his

right shoulder and lighting expert who could have examined the

amount of street light at the scene to determine how easily witnesses

could discern clothing color hair length and color and movements

They never requested funds for experts in part because the

prosecutors failed to provide some of the evidence that would have

made obvious the need for an expert
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Failure to Attack Lineup and States Pretrial Investigative Techniques

They failed to attack the lineup and other prosecutorial pretrial

investigative techniques This is partly the result of the police

camouflaging their improper procedures by inserting into several

witness statements descriptions of the lineup that were carefully

phrased to leave the impression that proper procedures had been

followed

Failure to Object to Prosecutor Statements During Voir Dire

They failed to object when prosecutors repeatedly misstated the law

during voLr dire by telling people who became jurors that Guerras

status as an illegal alien was relevant at the punishment stage which

they objected to only once out of three times ii police officers are

entitled to more credibility than other witnesses and iii the length

of prison term actually served by person given life sentence is

determined by formula used by the Parole Board

Failure to Object to Lineup and In-Court Identifications of Guerra

Although the defense lawyers received an indication about the States

use of improper identification and investigative procedures they failed

to request pretrial hearing at which they could expose the

unreliability of the identifications and they failed to object to the

in-court identifications of Guerra by the States witnesses If they had

excluded the identifications the States case would have collapsed

since there was no other evidence on which to base conviction

Failure to Question Fingerprint Expert

They failed to ask the States fingerprint expert to admit that he had

discovered no fingerprints on the murder weapon matching Guerras

fingerprints

Failure to Obtain and Present Evidence of Guerras Character

In the penalty phase the State must prove that the defendant

committed the crime deliberately and with the reasonable expectation

that death would result and ii there is probability that the

defendant would commit criminal acts of violence that would constitute

continuing threat to society The defendant is then expected to

respond
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The entire defense case during the punishment phase consisted

of one-and-one-half pages of testimony by Guerras mother in

which all she said about Guerra was that Guerra had come to

the U.S in May that he was 20 years old that he had never

come here previously that he had lived with his parents in

Monterrey before coming here and that he had never been

convicted of felony In closing argument the prosecutors

repeatedly referred to the failure to ask Guerras mother what

her son had been like growing up and the failure to put on

evidence about Guerras character from her or anyone else

suggesting that this left the juiy no alternative but to find that

Guerra would likely be dangerous in the future

ii Guerra will show extensive information about his background

from numerous witnesses including that he came from

close-knit and supportive though poor family that he was well

regarded by his teachers and his employer in Monterrey that

he turned his entire paycheck over to his mother every week

so that she could purchase food and clothing for the family

that he was well regarded by his soccer teammates that he

went to the U.S in search of better job that he regularly

sent money home from Houston he had $300 money order

made out to his mother in his pocket when he was arrested

that he had never been arrested charged or convicted of any

crime before this case that psychologist who examined him

when he was 16 thought he was follower not leader and

found no indication that he possessed criminal or violent

tendencies that he was known as quiet calm man who

helped support his parents that he exhibited discipline on the

soccer field and that he was quiet boy who respected

authority and interacted well with other children in school

The court erroneously refused to define the terms reasonable doubt

deliberately criminal acts of violence and continuing threat to society in the

punishment questions given to the jury

The definition of reasonable doubtt that the judge gave to some of

the jurors was substantially less complete than the definition provided

by recently enacted statute This left some jurors with too-narrow

definition and others with no definition at all
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The term deliberately as interpreted by most people adds nothing

to the intentional conduct required to find someone guilty of murder

The terms criminal acts of violence and continuing threat to society

also have no clear or objective meaning Almost every person

convicted of capital murder could be found to have some probability

of committing violent acts in the future review of cases shows that

it is impossible to rationally explain why the court has found the

evidence on this issue sufficient in some cases while finding

substantially more evidence about future dangerousness insufficient in

other cases

The court erroneously refused to excuse four members of the venire for

cause following an appropriate challenge by defense counsel

Standard Procedure

Each side is entitled to an unlimited number of strikes of venire

members who demonstrate bias known as striking for cause and

each side is given certain number of strikes that they can use at

their discretion for any reason known as preemptory challenges
If member of the venire is not dismissed for cause and neither side

uses preemptory challenge or if one side or the other has run out

of preemptory challenges then that member of the venire becomes

member of the july If someone should be struck for cause after

demonstrating bias but the judge refuses to strike them it forces

lawyer who does not want that juror to use one of limited supply

of preemptory challenges and eventually forces the attorney to accept

on the jury someone the lawyer would prefer to strike but cannot

Belief that AU Killers of Police Officers Should Die

One member of the venire repeatedly stated her belief that

person who killed police officer should be sentenced to death and

reversed the burden of proof requiring Guerra to produce

evidence that death was not the appropriate penalty But the judge

refused to strike her for cause

Houston Police Officer

Another member of the venire had been police officer for 32 years

including 24 years at HPD The court refused to strike him for cause

even though some states disallow police officers from ever serving as
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jurors and it would be difficult for any police-juror to be fair and

impartial in case involving the murder of fellow police officer

especially in case with numerous police department employees

testifying Moreover this police officer actually knew both prosecutors

and had known for many years at least seven of the police officers

subpoenaed by the prosecution to be witnesses in the case for periods

ranging from five to 25 years including two who actually testified the

fingerprint expert and the blood spatter expert This police officer

had actually used the fingerprint expert on some of his own cases

Belief that D.A.s Burden of Proof is Too Heavy

The third member of the venire .said that she felt that the beyond

reasonable doubt burden on the prosecution was inappropriate and

that if Guerra failed to testify she would hold it against him

Preference for Death Penalty Over Life Sentence

The fourth member of the venire actually became member of the

jury He admitted that he would favor the death penalty over life

sentence because he believed in an eye for an eye

Defense Was Forced to Accept Unacceptable Jurors

Although the judge granted the defense one additional preemptory

challenge it was too lateto exclude from the jury the people who the

defense lawyer identified as the jurors that he had to take because

he had exhausted his preemptory challenges on the first three people

listed above

10 The court put pressure on one holdout juror by inquiring into the numerical

division of the jury during the guilt-innocence phase deliberations

Jury Reached Verdict 15 Minutes After Court Inquiry

During the julys deliberations in the guilt-innocence phase the trial

court asked whether the jury had yet voted Told that it had the

court asked for the numerical division and the foreman responded

that the split was 11 to without indicating whether the majority

favored conviction or acquittal The trial court asked whether further

deliberations that evening would be productive the foreman requested

an additional hour and the jury returned 15 minutes later with

unanimous verdict
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Court Inquiry Pressured Holdout Juror

The request for the julys numerical division serves no useful purpose

and brought to bear in some degree pressure on the holdout juror and

froze the determination of the majority The speed with which the

jury reached verdict after the courts inquiry suggests that this

pressure worked

11 The court failed to correct misimpression created by the prosecutors that

even if Guerra were not the shooter he could be given the death penalty based on the

intent and character of Carrasco

12 The cumulative effect of the errors at trial denied Guerra fundamentally

fair trial There is reasonable probability that the verdict might have been different if

the trial had been properly conducted

0399.2580

2/17i93

r.\a1dapezie.ium

Attachments

Pages 1-6 55-62 117-39

D.A Comments re illegal aliens Vol 15 at 2603-04 Vol 18 at 3253-54

Vol 19 at 3552-54 Vol 27 at 165 179

SJA

-18-



MEMORANDUM

September 30 1992

TO Aldape File

FROM Scott Atlas

RE Summary of files revised 6/24/92

The following is summary of the contents of the various files that received

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Pleadings

HPD Investigation

Our Fact Investigation

Experts

Court Files

Legal Research

Mexican Government

Media

Third-Party Help

Miscellaneous

Parole

PLEADINGS CORRESPONDENCE YE MEMOS

Pleadings Various motions for admission pro hac vice motion to proceed

without an execution date an order that would we have access to the photographs

introduced in evidence appeal briefs appeals court opinion

Trial Court

Appeal Ct of Crim App U.S Sup Ct
Habeas

Correspondence with client with D.A and miscellaneous third

parties from Mr Manzanares files re Will Gray other attys TRC Job offers

emedia

Amicus Brief Mexicos Motion to Leave for File Amicus Brief 5/5/82



Hearings Notes for Hearing Setting Execution Date

IFPs Aldapes 5/8/92 affidavit in support of motion for leave to proceed

in forma properis

Memos to Team

Legal Memos

Mexican Consulate Files misc documents telexes to and from
letters to and from newspaper articles

Summaries of Trial Transcript

10 Notes 7/28/92 Hearing on Motion for Discovery

11 Billing

12 Associate and Legal Assistant Evaluations

HPD INVESTIGATION

Chemist Report Shows test for nitrate and nitrite powder on Officer

Harris describes dirt and debris on Aldapes hands and trace metal testing of Aldapes
hands and abdominal area It also descriles items found at the locatiOn including

brown felt hat yellow and white baseball cap and bullet debris It also describes

Aldapes clothes

file yet

Police Investigation Reports Sample open records request letter

memorandum describing involvement by each policemen in the investigation letter to

Investigator Elliott requesting information on Harris wife memo of notes from offense

reports listing who was present at the line-up and anything else they thought significant

and newspaper articles about policemen accused of misconduct

Aldape Statements Statements taken by HPD from Aldape

Witness Statements Police Statements taken by HPD voluminous

Summary

Photographs The crime scene the autos nearby homes victim witnesses

Aldape Carrasco photo line-up
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OUR FACT INVESTIGATION

Interviews with Client TDC attorney visitation forms memoranda of

interviews with Aldape including history of family life prior employment immigration to

the United States parents childhood communications between Alzondo and his parents
little of what happened at the trial handwritten notes living at the house on Rusk

employment in Houston women he met handwritten notes the people who lived at 4907

Rusk meeting Carrasco the gun store robbery police treatment the night of the murder

1-8-92 memorandum family early life school early work immigration work in Houston
the night of the murder dealings with his trial and appellate attorneys 11/26/91

Witness Information Description of record searches for witnesses

memoranda of interviews with Trinada Auero Hilma Galvan Irma 4/15/92 Enrique
Torres Luna and Bernardo Perez who shared house with Carrasco 3/22/92 relatives

of Hector Anguiano 4/15/92 George Lee Brown 4/4/92 Frank Perez 1/31/92
Armando Heredia 2/6/92 list of key jurors interpreters and state witnesses with known

information about them computer printouts on searches done on various people

Affidavit Hilma Galvan

Translations Contains authentication certificates from various translations

Aldapes TDC Records On numerous requests for Aldapes records and

responses by TDC under the Open Records Act

Disciplinary Hearing Records Aldapes social summary completed on all

newly received inmates with background information on family history physical and mental

history excessive drinking since age 18 educational employment history and his version

of the night of the murder summary of interview by Sociological Review Committee
Babcocks request for Aldapes prison records under the Open Records Act disciplinary

reports for five or six relatively minor infractions Court of Criminal Appeals opinion

Castillo File Excerpts Info on Efrain Marcos Marquezmata

Autopsy Reports Reports of Harris Armijo and Carrasco

Forensic Evidence Describes efforts to find trace metal detection experts

copies of exhibits containing drawings of hand print with description of trace metal

findings letters to potential experts summary of physical evidence introduced at trial

directory of forensic experts experts needed notes describing conversations with potential

experts and material from TASA Technical Advisory Service for Attorneys the largest

expert referral service in the United States
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10 Affidavits Spanish with English translation of affidavits from Aldapes
former employer Ex psychologist Ex teachers Exs 3-4 crime records Exs

10 Galvan etc

11 Investigations/Witness Interviews Memos describing meetings with Candy

4/15/92 12/6/91 7/8/92 Robert Onofre Nino 3/24/92 Enrique Torres Luna 2/21/92
and Jorge Cicero 12/10/91 crime scene map memo on facts known about Werro list

of investigation priorities Candys and Joes fee app the only pretrial days listed are 7/16

for Joe and 7/26 for Candy memo re efforts to find Candys file memo re pertinent facts

in book on Aldape case summaiy of Frank Perez testimony list of questions to ask all

witnesses

12 Things to do

13 Letter from Pam Harris forgiving Aldape

14 Enrique Torres Luna Joe Castillos legal file re charge of participating in

7/8/82 Rebel Gun Store robbery 10/82 trial testimony that i.d.s Enrique as one of the

robbers

15 Juror Interviews Memos re visits with Larry Douthitts brother 6/21/92
Randall Lee Woods 6/20/92

16 Candy Elizondos File Trial notes some witness interview notes voir dire

documents pleadings

17 Sandra Babcocks Handwritten Notes

18 Open Records Requests To Coroner FIPD Constable

19 Joe Hernandez File

EXPERTS

Eyewitness Experts Letter to Kip Williams 4/17/92 letter from Ronald

Fisher 4/7/92 Articles co-authored by Fisher and Giselman direct and cross examination

transcript of Dr Stephen Ceci bio on Edward Giselman Affidavit from Stephen Ceci

UH Academic Study Notes of conversation with Emilio Zamora concerning

sociological study about feelings toward illegal aliens in Houston in the early 1980s
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Pappv Cravens Report Report of reconstruction expert who raises

numerous issues based on review of photographs crime scene diagram HPD case file trial

transcript of witness testimony and view of original crime scene

Kip Williams Draft Affidavit describing eyewitness recollection problems

with attach vitae

Floyd McDonald Expert on metal trace nitrite Vitae

Herbert Foster Fingerprint expert Vitae

Lucille Lacev Handwriting expert

Max Courtney left-handedness

10 Bill Elliot pvt investigator

11 Fred Fason M.D eyewitness and competency expert

12 Keith Walters Linguist Jose Limon folklore re illegal alien

comment

13 Sergio Jaubert author of book on RAG

14 Mark Stevens ineffective assistance

COURT FilKS

Juror Information Memorandum of interviews completed juror information

forms questionnaires completed by each juror

LEGAL RESEARCH

Batson Contains memoranda describing information about an interview with

jurors and pertinent cases

Line-up Research See also blue binder Memorandum summarizing cases

on preservation of objection to suggestive pre-trial identification copies of numerous cases

Race and Administration of the Death Penalty Numerous legal articles

news articles and studies on this issue
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Sufficiency of Evidence Memorandum on possible procedural default bar

that preclude raising sufficiency claim on state habeas with copies of cases attached

Illegal Alien Comment Copies of cases Transcript References

Improper Voir Dire Comments Janies and Davids work

Cases General

Research Available from other Sources

Ineffective Counsel

10 Fees Expenses

11 Federal Habeas Materials

12 Underrepresentation of Hispanics on Venire

13 Cemetery Testimomy

14 Hostile Environment

15 Rebuttal Information

MEXICAN GOVERNMENT
ijc-r M4Cth

Mexico Government List of information requested from he Mexican

government copies of business cards of people met during trip to Mexico

Mexican Government Letters re Thanks Letters in Spanish and English

thanking Mexican Government officials for their assistance during recent visit by Babcock

and Welch

MEDIA

Press Releases Fact Sheets

Pretrial Trial Publicity 1982

English

Spanish
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Post-Trial Publicity post 1982

English

Spanish

Issues other than Aldape

Post SJA

Books Magazine Articles

English

Spanish

TV Scripts Videos

English

Spanish

Radio Scripts Tapes

P.R Experts

Requests for Interviews

Songs

JrwRD-PARTY HELP

Letters and Petitions Letters to court and petitions requesting Aldapes
release

Community Activities names corresp w/leaders leaflets minutes of the

Free Aldape Committee petitions

Inter-American Commission on Human Rights 5/5/92 Letter in Spanish

to members of the Commission from Aldapes siblings

Safeguards Publication entitled Safeguards for Guaranteeing

the Rights of Those Condemned Under the Death Penalty

MISCELLANEOUS

Law Firm TRC efforts to hire law firm
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Parole

Articles

Board Members

0399 2580
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VINSON ELKINS C4 if3
DATE PREPARED 7/17/92 REPORT FOR PAGE

THE FOLLOWING IS LISTING OF ALL FILES FOR PID 770758

CLIENT VINSON ELKINS PRO BONO NONBILLABLE

PID 770758 CAT GEM
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NO ATTY DATE OPENED DATE CLOSED ARCHIVE NO DESCRIPTION /1 /J
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001 DRC 6/24/92 GENERAL CORRESPONDENCE

002 DRC 6/24/92 8ACKGRJND MATERIALS

003 SJA 6/25/92 CORRESPONDENCE WITH CLIENT

004 SJA 6/25/92 CORRESPONDENCE

005 SJA 6/25/92 PUBLICITY

006 SJA 6/25/92 PLEADINGS VOL

007 JWFE 6/30/92 GENERAL-112

008 JCO 6/29/92 MEMOS AND CORRESPONDENCE

009 PAW 7/02/92 GENERAL

010 RAMO 7/06/92 PLEADINGS VOL

011 RANO 7/06/92 CORRESPONDENCE

012 SJA 7/08/92 NOTES

013 SJA 7/08/92 TEAM MEETINGS

014 SJA 7/08/92 LEGAL MEMOS
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2404-92 0828 EPOCA DE MEXICO IDENTIF.915 03 15 10 .02

EPOC4

MISS SANDRA Bu8CCIc

Dear Misa Bobck

Ap i1 23 1992

want to submit to your consid

that wouLd like to post to your defenda

Guerre LJe are more intersted in story

in an account of legel aupects

think thst of course you

interview with you on the legsl detailt

hail appreciate very much you

magazine is yery tnt created in the case

erttion the questions

rt Mr Ricordo Aldape

human interest than

reP could have an

the case

help beosuse our

yours

del Rfo

Director

EPOCAde Mexico S.A de CV
Donato Guerra No 19 Centro Mexico D.F 06600

Tel 705-1098 Fax 103.1514



2404-82 0828 EFOCA DE MEXICO IDENTIF.915 10 P.01

EPOC4 ______

1.- You were condemned to death ten years ago
1Since then your execution

has been poatponed mony timee Doesnt thi situatj uncertainty
break your nerves Hc do you feel

Mow is your life in prialon and your Delatiri with other inmete arid

guardians

Your opinion about justice

14 Do you believe in love friendship and salt Jarity

5.. If you were freed what would you do with ur life

6... In caa your death sentence is commuted to
tfe imprigoriment

would it make difference to you

7q comment or your family

Your

EPOCA de Mexico S.A de
Donato Guerra No 19 Centro Mexico D.F 06600

Tel 705-1098 Fax 703..151
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PFR 22 92 O357FM PP P.2/2

ii it ii ii liii it II ii it ii ii tilt it iv ii II lilt II Pitt ii II III ii $11111 1111 tIll 117111 Ii II

PUBLIC RELEASE INFORMATiON

HOUSTON POL CE DEPARTMENT FRONT PAGE
OFFENSE REPORT Incident no..1 04262455a

Ipililil lilt II 11111
Ilillilli IIPPPIIIlllIl till IliiiiiiiIIiIIIIil 111111 IlliiItliiitiPiiIil IlillillmDIllill

OFfense- CAPITALMURDER.clF POLICE OFFICER fl
Premises- PUBLIC STREET Weather- HOTHUMID

Location Street no- 004900 Name- WALKER
Type- Suffix- Apt no-

City-HOUSTON County-HARRIS Kmap-494T P1st-It Eeat-10H20
Noishborhtoscolje-ooo7 DescEA$fl4000

E4eIri date TU oTJas/ea TIme- 2200 Enddate- Time-

COMPLAINANT CS

No-Ol Name Lat-HARRIS First-JAMES Middle-P
Race-W Sex-M Age-29 Hispanic-
Address-si RIESNER
Phonet Home- 000 000-OOoo Sits inns- 000 649-S529 Ext
Injured Taken to-HARRIS CO MORGUE By-HFD 1115
Cond Ion-DECEASED

DETAILS OF OFFENSE

HOUSTON POLICE OFFICER JD HARRIS WASSHOTSEVERALTIMES t4YTHE SUSP AFTER
OFFICER HARRIS HAD STOPPED THE VEHICLE OCCUPIED Sy THE SUSPS AT THE CORNER
OF WALKER AND EDGEWOODS TWO LATIN AMEI CAN MALE SUSP 15 FLED TIlE SCENE
FOLLOWING THE SHO0TINGSHOOTING AN.UNINVOLVED CITIZEN DURING THEIR FLIGHT1
OFFICER HARRIS DIED FROM GUNSHOT WOUNDS TO THE HEAD SHORT TIME LATER

Officerl Name-R.W HOLLAND Employee no-O57584.Shift-2
Offlcerz Name-G.T NEELY Employee no-048472Shlft-2

Divisiori/Staticin -HOM Unit 0-2208

Call received Date-07/I3/e TIme-ZZIO Reportmadet Date-0T/14/52..Time-0500



Texas Resource Center

713 522.5917

FAX 713 522-2733

Vieux Carre Building

3223 Smith Street

Suite 215

Houston Texas 77006

FACSIMILE TRAXSMISSION COVER SHEET

/2
44A4L1A

If you do not receive all the pages please call us at 713-522-

5917 Thank you

MESSAGE

TILLS COMMUNICATION MAY CONTAIN CONFIDENTIAL OR PRIVILEGED

INFORMATION IT IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE ADDRESSEE IF YOU
RECEIVED iT IN ERROR ThEN ANY DISTRIBIJTION READING COPYING OR
USE OF TifiS COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED IN SUCH

CIRCUMSTANCES PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY BY CALLING 713-522-5917

AND RETURN THE ORIGINAL COMMUNICATION TO US AT TILE ABOVE
ADDRESS BY MAIL THANK YOU

TO

COMPMW

FAX NUMBER

PHONE NUMBER

-j

52V- P/8

FROM 1L/- L-k_
NUMBER OF PAGES

DATE

including cover letter

TIME

1206 San Antonio

Austin Texas 78701

Main Office 512 320-8300
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Texas Resource Center
Vieux Carre Building

713 522-5917 3223 Smith Street

FAX 713 522-2733 Suite 215

Houston Texas 77006

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
March 19 1992

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT
Lynn Lamberty 713/5225917

JUDGE SETS EXECUTION DATE FOR RICARDO ALDAPE GUERRA

Ricardo Aldape Guerra Mexican national whose conviction for

capital murder in 1981 led to public demonstrations in Houston and
in Mexico was told today by Texas District Court Judge Woody
Densen that he would be executed on May 12 1992 unless Guerra
persuades the judge before that date that his case merits further
review by the courts

Guerra crossed the U.S.-Mexican border illegally in May 1981

and came to Houston to look for work Five months later jury
convicted him of the July 13 1981 murder of Houston police officer
James Harris and sentenced Guerra to die by lethal injection

At trial prosecutors claimed Guerra shot and killed Harris
who had stopped Guerra and his passenger for traffic violation
However the millimeter Browning used to kill Harris was used by
the passenger Roberto Carrasco Flores in shootout he had with
police shortly after Harris was killed Flores was killed by the
police in the shootout When police examined his body they found
the service revolver belonging to Harris stuck in the waistband of

Flores pants Guerra was not involved in the shootout

Prosecutors presented no physical evidence linking Guerra to
the shooting Eyewitnesses to the murder gave conflicting accounts
of what happened Mr Guerra has maintained his innocence since he
was arrested in 1981

Lynn Lamberty one of the lawyers working for Mr Guerra
stated Its unfortunate that an execution date has been set
There is tremendous amount of investigation left to do We will
be working hard to present information to the courts that will
result in stay of execution before May 12th We believe that Mr
Guerra is entitled to new trial based on the numerous violations
of his constitutional rights that occurred during his trial in
addition to significant evidence that indicates that he is innocent
of the crime for which he was convicted We are confident that
full investigation and presentation of Mr Guerras case to the
courts will persuade them to grant him new trial

Mr Guerra has maintained his innocence since he was arrested
in 1981

Main Office 1206 San Antonio 512 320-8300

Austin Texas 78701



PRESS CONTACTS GUERRA

Jackie Lerma El Norte Beeper 563-6066

Silvia Gonzales Grupo Radio Asir 790880 790878
Monterrey

Hector Martinez Channel 48 Guillermos friend

Luis Cruz Channel 48 Teleniundo tel 7613089

Ramon Rodriguez Reyna Mexican News Agency McAllen tel
512/6183840



IDEAS FOR PRESS STRATEGY INVOLVING GUERRAS FAMILY

Contact press about doing interviews later Ask them for

proposals about the kinds of questions they would like to ask

Have family focus on the parent-child relationship Mother
could say If he were guilty Id be willing to give him up But he
has told me time and time again that he is innocent and know him
well enough to know that he is telling the truth Talk about how
she cannot abandon him

Have parents call meeting while on television and try to

get phone number where people can call in and volunteer to work
on Guerras case

Talk about difficulty of comprehending legal system and their
rights under our system No Spanish language trial
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The Case of Ricardo Aldape Guerra

Ricardo Aldape Guerra was convicted for the murder of
policeman James Harris in July 1981 The murder took place at
approximately 1000 p.m in an East Houston neighborhood Evidence
presented at trial indicated that Officer Harris had stopped Mr
Aldape Guerra and his passenger Roberto Carrasco Flores for
routine traffic violation

At Aldape Guerras trial for capital murder prosecutors
claimed that Aldape Guerra shot Harris then shot an innocent
bystander as he fled from the scene of the murder Forensic
experts testified for the state that both Harris and the bystander
Jose Francisco Armijo were shot with bullets from millimeter
Browning

Approximately an hour after the murder as police were
searching for Aldape Guerra and Carrasco Flores Flores emerged
from dark garage and shot another police officer Lawrence
Trepagnier five times The gun he used to shoot Trepagnier was
his own millimeter Browning Carrasco Flores was then killed in
police crossfire as he tried to escape

When police examined the body of Carrasco Flores they found
the .357 Colt revolver that had belonged to Officer Harris in the
waistband of Flores pants The millimeter Browning had fallen
from his hand as he fell and lay beside his body on the grass
Clipped to the waistband of his pants was militarystyle pouch
containing magazine loaded with 20 rounds of millimeter
ammunition In the pockets of his pants police found an
additional eleven loose rounds of millimeter high-powered
ammunit ion

The police discovered Ricardo Aldape Guerra minutes later
hiding behind horse trailer in the driveway of the house He had
wrapped his gun .45 Datonics pistol in bandanna and placed it
under the trailer He had no other ammunition or weapons

The prosecutions theory of the case at trial was that the two
men had inexplicably switched guns after Aldape Guerra murdered
Harris Yet police chemists were unable to find any trace metal on
Guerras palms that would indicate that he had held the
millimeter Browning No fingerprints matching Guerras were found
on either Harris .357 revolver or on the millimeter Browning
There was absolutely no evidence that Guerra had ever touched
either of the two weapons When police traced the millimeter
Browning they found that Carrasco Flores had paid someone to
purchase it for him some weeks earlier

To bolster their gunswitch theory prosecutors turned to
several witnesses to the murder of Officer Harris

Two state witnesses testified that they had seen Aldape Guerra



shoot Harris Three others testified that they had seen Guerra at
the scene but were not able to positively identify him as the
shooter Two witnesses for the defense testified that they had
seen Carrasco Flores shoot Harris

Significantly all of the states witnesses gave descriptions
of the shooter which differed tremendously from the actual physical
appearance of Ricardo Aldape Guerra and were consistent with the

coloring of Carrasco Flores and the clothing that he wore To
assist the witnesses in identifying Guerra at trial prosecutors
brought lifesized mannequins of Guerra and Flores into the

courtroom where they remained throughout the trial The
mannequins faces were molded into likenesses of Guerra and Flores
and the mannequins wore the same clothing that the two men were
found wearing on the night of the shooting These mannequins
remained in front of each witness as she or he testified as to the
general appearance of Guerra and Flores

The jury found Mr Guerra guilty after deliberating for over
five hours His conviction and death sentence were upheld on

appeal over vigorous dissent One dissenting judge noted
my mind at least the testimony of the States witnesses

does not exclude the reasonable hypothesis that Flores killed
Harris or to put it another way though such testimony does not

necessarily support the inference that Flores did neither does it
eliminate that possibility beyond reasonable doubt

Unknown to the jurors who convicted Mr Guerra Flores had
previously committed at least two armed robberies and had
criminal record in Ochiltree County Mr Guerra had never been
charged with or convicted of crime before his arrest for the
murder of Harris

Mr Guerra has maintained his innocence from the time he was
arrested and his account of the events surrounding his conviction
has remained consistent for the past ten years



The Case of Ricardo Aldape Guerra

Ricardo Aldape Guerra was convicted for the murder of Houston policeman James

Harris in July 1982 The murder took place at approximately 1000 p.m in an East

Houston neighborhood Evidence presented at trial indicated that Officer Harris had

stopped Mr Aldape Guerra and his passenger Roberto Carrasco Flores for routine

traffic violation

At Aldape Guerras trial for capital murder prosecutors claimed that Aldape
Guerra shot Harris then shot an innocent bystander as he fled from the scene of the

murder Forensic experts testified for the state that both Harris and the bystander Jose

Francisco Armijo were shot with bullets from millimeter Browning

Approximately an hour after the murder as police were searching for Aldape
Guerra and Carrasco Flores Carrasco Flores emerged from dark garage and shot

another police officer five times with the same millimeter Browning Carrasco Flores

was then killed in police crossfire as he tried to escape

When police examined the body of Carrasco Flores they found the .357 Colt

revolver that had belonged to Officer Harris in the waistband of Flores pants The

millimeter Browning had fallen from his hand as he fell and lay beside his body on the

grass Clipped to the waistband of his pants was military-style pouch containing

magazine loaded with 20 rounds of millimeter ammunition In his pants pockets police

found an additional eleven loose rounds of millimeter ammunition

The police discovered Aldape Guerra minutes later hiding behind horse trailer

in the driveway of the house He had wrapped his gun .45 Datonics pistol in

bandanna and placed it under the trailer He had no other ammunition or weapons

The prosecutions theory of the case at trial was that the two men had inexplicably

switched guns after Aldape Guerra murdered Harris Yet police chemists were unable to

find any trace metal on Aldape Guerras palms that would indicate that he had ever held

the millimeter Browning No fingerprints matching Guerras were found on either

Harris .357 revolver or on the millimeter Browning There was no evidence that Guerra

had ever touched either weapon When police traced the millimeter Browning they
found that Carrasco Flores had paid someone to purchase it for him several weeks earlier

To bolster their gun-switch theory prosecutors turned to several eyewitnesses to

the murder of Officer Harris



Two state witnesses testied that they had seen Aldape Guerra shoot Harris Three

others testified that they had seen Guerra at the scene but were not able to positively

identify him as the shooter Two defense witnesses testified that they had seen Carrasco

Flores shoot Harris

Significantly all of the states witnesses gave descriptions of the shooter that differed

from Aldape Guerras physical appearance and were consistent with the coloring of

Carrasco Flores and the clothing that he wore To assist the witnesses in identifying

Aldape Guerra at trial prosecutors brought life-sized mannequins of Aldape Guerra and

Carrasco Flores into the courtroom where they remained throughout the trial The

mannequins faces were molded into likenesses of Aldape Guerra and Carrasco Flores and

the mannequins wore the same clothing that the two men had worn on the night of the

shooting These mannequins remained in front of the witness stand as each witness

testified about the general appearance of the two men

The jury found Aldape Guerra guilty after deliberating for over five hours His

conviction and death sentence were upheld on appeal over vigorous dissent One

dissenting judge noted my mind at least the testimony of the States witnesses

does not exclude the reasonable hypothesis that Flores killed Harris or to put it another

way though such testimony does not necessarily support the inference that Flores did

neither does it eliminate that possibility beyond reasonable doubt

Unknown to the jurors who convicted Aldape Guerra Flores had previously

committed at least two armed robberies Aldape Guerra had never been charged with or

convicted of crime before his arrest for Harris murder

Ricardo Aldape Guerra has maintained his innocence since he was arrested and

his trial testimony and other accounts of the events surrounding his conviction has

remained consistent for the past ten years
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SHORT SUMMARY OF THE CASE OF RICARDO ALDAPE GUERRA

General Background

Ricardo Aldape Guerra was born in Monterrey Mexico on April 1962 Ricardo

has been on death row since October 1982 He remains Mexican citizen

Ricardo grew up with his parents two sisters and brother in small house in

poor neighborhood on the outskirts of Monterrey After leaving school in the 10th grade

he found steady work in factory that produced cardboard boxes -- the same factory

where his father had worked for 33 years

Ricardo worked at the factory for years After his 20th birthday however he left

his low-paymg job to look for better work When work proved impossible to find

Monterrey he decided to go to the Umted States where he had heard there were jobs

available for Mexican workers In May 1982 he sold his bicycle and with the money he

received he and two friends boarded bus for Laredo Mexico Once in Laredo the boys

crossed the border illegally on train Two days later they arrived in Houston

Ricardo began looking for work the day after he arrived in Houston He eventually

found job installing sheetrock He lived at 4907 Rusk Street in Houston along with the

friends who came with him from Mexico and number of other undocumented workers

in poor high-crime Hispanic community

Ricardo Aldape Guerras capital murder trial

Officer James Harris was killed on July 13 1982 only few blocks from the house

where Ricardo had hved That same night Ricardo was arrested for the murder of

Officer Hams In October 1982 he was convicted and sentenced to death What follows

is brief summary of the evidence presented at his trial that led to his conviction

On the night of July 13th Ricardo borrowed the car of friend Jacinto Lopez to

drive to the store to buy some soda Riding with him in the passenger seat was Roberto

Carrasco Flores

After purchasing some cokes Ricardo drove around the streets of his neighborhood

before gomg home He was driving fast and at one point came close to hitting

neighborhood teenager George Brown who was walking his dog The teenager waved

down passing police car and Officer James Harris pursued the two men



Meanwhile the car driven by Ricardo and Carrasco Flores had stalled at the

intersection of Walker and Edgewood two blocks from the house at 4907 Rusk There

at approximately 1000 p.m Officer Harris caught up to the two men stopped his car

behind them and got out What happened next was perceived differently by number

of witnesses at trial One fact however was clear one of the men wielding

millimeter Browning semi-automatic pistol approached Officer Harris and shot him three

times in the side of the head Both men then ran down Walker Street As they were

running they passed car carrying Jose Francisco Armijo and his two children The man

carrying the millimeter Browning shot into the car One of the bullets hit Mr Armijo

in the back of his head and he later died

Both Ricardo and Carrasco Flores made their way back to the house at 4907 Rusk

After telling their friends what had happened they left the house and tried to find place

to hide from the police Carrasco Flores hid in the garage Ricardo crouched down

behind horse trailer in the driveway

Meanwhile the police had arrived on the scene where Officer Harris had been shot

Neighbors informed them that they recognized the car Ricardo had been driving as one

that was frequently parked in front of 4907 Rusk More than dozen police officers went

to the Rusk Street address to search for the suspects While several searched inside the

house two officers Lawrence Trepagnier and Mike Edwards searched the back yard As

the two officers approached the garage where Carrasco Flores was hiding at about 1130

p.m he opened fire hitting Officer Trepagnier times in the chest and abdomen

Carrasco Flores then ran around the corner of the house in an attempt to escape but was

shot to death by other officers on the scene

When the police examined the dead body of Carrasco Flores they found the

millimeterpistol which lay by his body where he fell In the morgue police discovered

Harris .357 service revolver wedged between the waistband of Carrasco Flores pants and

his stomach Attached to his belt was military-type magazine pouch containing

magazine loaded with 20 rounds of millimeter ammunition In his pants pockets police

found 11 additional loose rounds of millimeter high-powered ammunition

Ricardo was discovered by Terry Wilson Assistant D.A for Harris County several

minutes after Carrasco Flores was killed Crouching behind horse trailer he put his

hands in the air then laid down on his stomach as Wilson ordered He was then taken

into custody Underneath the trailer police found .45 caliber Datonics pistol
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Once at the police station Ricardo gave the police statement in which he

admitted carrying the .45 caliber pistol He swore however that Carrasco Flores had shot

Officer Harris

According to Ricardo when Officer Harris stopped his car he said something in

English that Ricardo did not understand Ricardo thought that Harris wanted him to

approach the police car and place his hands on the hood of the car Ricardo did so

Harris had his gun out pointing it at Ricardo As Ricardo stood by the police car he

heard shots from behind him and saw Harris fall He then saw Carrasco Flores bend over

to take Harris service revolver and both men took off running Both men ran east on

Walker Street Flores ran on the north side of the Street and turned north at the next

corner and Aldape Guerra ran down the south side of Walker and turned south at the

next corner

As he was running Ricardo said he heard Carrasco Flores fire his weapon the

millimeter Browning Hoping to discourage Flores from following Ricardo said he took

his .45 from the waistband of his pants and fired it twice in the air

The physical evidence introduced at trial

At trial Houston police homicide detective G.T Neely testified that spent casings

from millimeter bullets were found around the area of Walker and Edgewood streets

where Officer Harris was shot One of these was found in the passenger side of the car

in which Carrasco Flores was seated and were recovered from the wall of house

across the street from and almost due west of where Harris was shot Neely opined that

the bullets were the same ones that passed through Officer Harris head One

millimeter bullet was recovered from the back of Mr Armijos head

Firearms examiner C.E Anderson testified that in addition to the seven millimeter

casings found by Neely he found six spent millimeter casing and six millimeter bullets

at 4907 Rusk The total magazine capacity of the millimeter pistol was 13-15 rounds

No bullets and only two spent casing from the .45 caliber pistol were found on

Walker Street on the south side of the street No spent casings and no bullets from the

the .45 caliber Datonics were found around the Rusk Street house When the

.45 Datonics pistol was found it contained live rounds of ammunition Anderson

testified that the total magazine capacity of the .45 is only 5-6 rounds

-3-



Lee Cooper the police lab fingerprint analyst testified that he found an

unidentified palm print on the front right quarter of Harris car that was unsuitable for

comparison purposes

Police chemist Amy Parker Heeter testified that after performing trace metal

detection test on Carrasco Flores hands she found pattern of trace metal left on his

right palm that was consistent with the pattern left by Officer Harris .357 service revolver

She also testified that she found trace metal pattern on Carrasco Flores left palm but

that the pattern was inconsistent with the pattern left by the millimeter Browning

Chemist Danita Smith performed trace metal detection test on Ricardos palms

and found no trace metal pattern She also testified that the metal on the gun handle of

the .45 caliber Datonics would not leave trace metal pattern due to the type of metal

on the gun handle

None of the physical evidence presented during the trial linked Ricardo to the

murder of Officer Harris and Jose Armijo Indeed all that evidence indicated that

Carrasco Flores had fired the fatal shots from the millimeter Browning

State eyewitness testimony

The state presented the testimony of five eyewitnesses to the shooting of Officer

Harris Only two of these witnesses testified that they saw Ricardo shoot Officer Harris

None of the witnesses saw gun in Ricardos hands And significantly all of the

witnesses gave descriptions of the shooter shortly after the crime that differed from

Ricardos actual physical appearance and were consistent with the coloring and clothing

worn by Carrasco Flores Thus to assist the witnesses in identifying Ricardo the

prosecutors brought life-sized mannequins of Ricardo and Carrasco Flores into the

courtroom where they remained throughout the trial The mannequins faces were

molded into the likenesses of the two men including the same hairstyles and the clothing

that they were found wearing on the night of the shooting These mannequins remained

in front of each witness as she or he testified about the clothing color and hair length of

the people seen at the crime scene

Jose Armijo Jr was 10 years old when he saw his father killed by bullet from the

millimeter Browning He was seated in the front seat of his fathersca
He testified on direct that while other people were

standing by the hood of the police ear with their hands on the hood of the car one man
acted like he was scratching his back took out gun and shot Harris He testffied that

the man who shot Harris was wearing green shirt -- like the mannequin that looked like
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Ricardo Jose testified that after shooting Harris Ricardo then ran down the Street and

shot into the car where Jose sat with his father

On cross Jose admitted that he told the police both at the scene of the shooting

and later at the lineup that he could not identify the man who shot his father He also

testified that after he first heard the shots that killed Officer Harris he ducked hiding on

the floorboard of his fathers car with his little sister until the men had already run past

the car

To rehabilitate Jose the prosecution put Marie Estelle Armijo the boys mother

on the stand She testified that Jose had told her that he knew who had committed the

crime but that he was afraid to tell the police because he thought the defendant would

hurt him

Patricia Diaz was sitting in her car only few feet away from the stalled out Buick

at the intersection of Walker and Edgewood when the shooting occurred Diaz testffied

on direct that she only saw one man standing near the Buick and he was pointing toward

the police car She identified that man as Ricardo She further testified that she did not

see anything else because she looked down and away from the scene when she saw what

was happening She did not see anyone shoot Officer Harris She also did not see

Ricardo or Carrasco Flores as they ran away

The state also presented the testimony of two sisters Herlinda Garcia age 15 and

Vera Flores age 16 Both were standing on the Street next to the stalled out Buick when

the shooting occurred

Herlinda Garcia testified that after the Buick stalled out Ricardo and Carrasco

Flores got out of the car and asked the
girls

for boost because their car was messed

up Seconds later the police car pulled up After testifying that both men were out of

the Buick she then contradicted herself by testifying that the two men at that point got

out of their car and walked toward Harris One of the men whom she identified as

Ricardo pulled something out of his pants and shot Harris She could not see what

the man pulled out of his pants

On cross Herlinda admitted that on the night of the shooting she told the police

that the shooter had been wearing brown shirt and brown pants and had blond hair

Her description nearly matched the appearance of Carrasco Flores on the night of the

crime Carrasco Flores had been wearing burgundy shirt and brown pants while Ricardo

had been wearing green shirt and blue jeans Both men had dark hair yet Flores was

commonly known as El Werro which is nickname commonly used for Hispanics who

are light-skinned Literally translated werro can also mean blond-haired As most of
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these witnesses were Spanish-speaking it is quite possible that when they gave their

statements to the police they identified the shooter as Werro In the English translation

this word is translated as blond

On cross Herlinda testified that she saw the man in the brown pants walking

toward the police officer The other man was standing by the police car with his hands

on top of the car As the other man stood with his hands on the hood of the police car

the man in the brown pants walked toward the policeman and pulled something out of

his pants She testified that she never saw anyone shoot the police officer she simply

heard the shots and then took off running

Vera Flores Herlindas 16-year-old sister testified that she was walking away from

the corner of Walker and Edgewood when she heard gunshots She did not see anyone

shoot Harris yet she testified that she knew Aldape Guerra was the shooter

when he started running just seen him shooting down the Street

At police lineup several hours after the shooting Vera was not able to identify

Ricardo She testified at trial that she had recognized him but did not want to say

anything because she was afraid

On cross Vera admitted that in the statement she gave to police only hours after

the shooting she stated that both she and Herlinda had begun walking back to their house

before the shooting occurred In an earlier statement she also told the police that she

saw the driver of the Buick place his hands on the hood of the police car

After the shooting Vera testified that she saw Ricardo running east on Walker

toward the south side of the Street away from the scene of the shooting

Hilma Galvan was the most damaging witness to Ricardos case She testified on

direct that she saw Harris stop his car get out and yell at man who had gotten out of

the stalled Buick She saw the man walk toward Harris then heard two shots and saw

Harris fall After the officer fell she heard two more shots

Galvan stated that she never saw gun although she did see flashes of gunfire

She testified that Ricardo was the shooter and that after he shot Harris he turned and

shot at Herlinda and Vera Galvan testified that she had seen Ricardo before and she

recognized him from the neighborhood She also testified that she did not see anyone else

at the scene and was unaware of Carrasco Flores presence

Galvan went to lineup and identified Ricardo after the shooting In her initial

statement to the police however she also swore that the shooter had blond hair
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On cross Galvan admitted that in the first statement she gave to police she said

that Harris approached the driver and pushed him against the car -- it is not clear from

the record whether it was the police car or the Buick Then she heard the shots and saw

Ricardo running toward her on the north side of Walker She testified that she saw

Ricardo clearly and knew him from the neighborhood yet she described the shooter to

the police as someone with blond hair and wearing dark brown or black shirt and dark

brown pants

Although the state presented the testimony of other witnesses these were the only

eyewitnesses who testified for the state

The defense

In his defense Ricardos trial lawyers presented the testimony of two eyewitnesses

both of whom said they saw Carrasco Flores kill Officer Harris

The first witness Jacinto Vega who was in ninth grade at the time of trial testified

that he was sitting on Hilma Galvans porch when he saw the Buick drive by real fast

and then stop at the intersection of Walker and Edgewood He testified that when Harris

stopped and yelled something at the driver the driver went over to the police car and

placed his hands on the hood of the car At that time the passenger came around from

behind the driver took something out of his pants and shot Harris The passenger then

started running At that point he Galvan and some other boys all ran inside Galvans

house

Jose Heredia also testified for the defense He was standing next to Hilma Galvan

when the shooting took place He stated that he saw Ricardo walk over to the police car

and place his hands on the hood of the car Then he saw Carrasco Flores shoot the

police officer

In addition to the two eyewitnesses defense attorneys presented the testimony of

two men who lived in the house at 4907 Rusk Jose Manuel Esparza and Jose Luis Torres

Luna Both testified that they were in the house when Carrasco Flores and Ricardo

arrived shortly after the shooting Carrasco Flores arrived first followed by Ricardo

According to both witnesses Carrasco Flores admitted he had just shot police officer

Shortly after Ricardo arrived Jose Luis and Jose Manuel asked Carrasco Flores to leave

the house so that they would not get in trouble
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was going to defend himself According to Jose Luis Carrasco Flores said that he

preferred to be killed than to surrender Both Ricardo and Carrasco Flores then left out

of the back door

Ricardo also testified in his defense He maintained his innocence basically

repeating the story he had earlier told the police

When the Buick stalled out Ricardo testified he got out of the car and asked Vera

Flores and Herlinda Garcia if they had any jumper cables They said they did not so

Ricardo vainly tried again to start the car Harris pulled up in his car moments later

Ricardo got out of his car and heard Harris say Come on Ricardo understood

little English but he thought the police officer wanted him to approach the police car and

place his hands on the hood of the car Harris had his revolver out and was pointing it

at Ricardo

As Ricardo was standing by the police car he heard some shots almost in my
ears Then he saw Harris drop to the ground Carrasco Flores walked up to Harris and

took his gun then both men ran Ricardo ran down the south side of Walker heading

east While running he saw car coming towards him on the Street and heard some

shots behind him In panic he fired his gun twice in the air

Eventually Ricardo made his way back to 4907 Rusk When he arrived Carrasco

Flores was already there

The punishment hearing

After the jury found Ricardo guilty of capital murder punishment hearing was

held after which the jury gave affirmative answers to the two special issues that are

prerequisite to assessing the death penalty

At the punishment hearing prosecutors presented several witnesses all of whom
testified about the robbery of the Rebel Gun Store five days before the murder of Officer

Harris According to one of the two gun store customers who testified for the state

Ricardo was one of three men who robbed the gun store on July 1982 the other

witness could not identify him

According to the witnesses Ricardo was not armed when he entered the gun store

He and another Hispanic man entered the store and went to the back of the store to look

at some guns Minutes later Carrasco Flores entered the store armed with pistol
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Ricardo and another man pushed the employees and customers into back room taped

their arms behind their backs and made them lie down on the floor Then while one of

the men watched them the others went through the store and took guns and ammunition

Then they left leaving the customers and employees tied up in the back room unharmed

During the testimony of Terry Delaney the owner of Rebel Gun Store the state

produced .45 caliber submachine gun with silencer on the end and Delaney testified

that the gun was one of those taken in the robbery The state also produced an Uzi and

Delaney testified that the Uzi was similar although not identical to one of the guns stolen

in the robbery Delaney further testified that the gun found on the ground near Ricardo

the .45 caliber Datonics pistol was taken from his gun store

Finally Lee Cooper fingerprint examiner testified that one of the prints

obtained from objects at the gun store matched one of Ricardos fingers

The defense presentation at punishment was almost non-existent Mrs Francisca

Guerra de Aldape Ricardos mother testified that her son had been raised by her and

had never been convicted of any felonies Her testimony when transcribed covered

pages She was not asked by Ricardos trial attorney to testify about other matters

despite the wealth of good character evidence in Ricardos background

acase-sum.rag
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ASHINGTON group that favors tight clamps on

Immigration has published report disputing earlier

reseasch that
indicated-illegal aliens are not drain on

overtment social programs such as welfare

The report was immediately criticized by Hispanic

advocates who argue that most aliens here ille

are boon to rather than drain on the economy
should be allowed to stay here legally

Federation for American Immigration Reform

goes by the acronym FAIR is trying to dispel the

tional wisdom garnered mostly from studies in

.Øarly to middle 1970s that
illegal aliens pay taxes

make little use of public services

idea is myth that could lead to hemorrhage
welfare system unless illegal immigration

stopped said the report by Roger
director of FAIR who has back-

as an environmental lawyer
ngs of the report dovetail with FAIRs advocacy

gration restrictions and its opposition to con-

Monday Odo 11 1982

clamps on immigration

cepts such as legalization for perhaps millioiof
illegal

aliens being considered by Congress
It seems to be FAIRs standard slick-looking publi

cation that on its face has lot of material but is
just

another slim document to be -added to the side of the

restrictionistssaid Enrique Valenzuela an imnmigra
ion specialist for the exican American Legal Defense
and Education.Fund

The FAIR Depoit does not include original research
but is survey ofecent studies which Conner said have
not received enough attention

FAIR said newer studies show for example that al
most 35 percent of

group of
illegal aliens in California

received unemployment benefits that 29 percent of ille

gal Domjriicans in.New Yprk City received welfare that

18.5 percent of undocumented women in Los Angeles
received welfare and that 46 percent to 51 percent of all

unemployment insurance applications by aliens in nIl
nois were from

illegal aliens

Like most of the earlier studies il-.ose cited by FAIR
are generally analyses restricted to certain types of

illegal aliens in one program in one state or county
during one limited time period But FAIR said they

fare cIaimed
1enges earlier researc
point to change in welfare use by illegal

alieis

The first evidence on the subject drawn primarily

from surveys of apprehended illegal aliens suggested

minimal utilization of income transfer programs Con

ner wrote Later more representative evidences

though largely ignored by the media and
politicians1

indicates much greater utilization.1

He contended earlier studies
seriously undeesti-

mated the use of social programs by illegal allen and

that correction of the false impression is matter of

some importance
David North one of the leading researchers who did

some of the earlier studies said4 he generally thinks

FAIR has point although he did ot analyze the FAIR

report in detail think theres %omething to it he

said but added that much more research is needed to be

definitive

North said his own pioneering studies of the 1970s that

showed most of sampling of apprehended illegal
aliens

paid taxes and did not take social benefits have been

somewhat misused
He said he cautioned at the time as Conner does in

the current report that sampling of illegal aliens who

were mostly young previously employed males would

naturally have been expected to be paymg taxes de
ducted from their paychecks and not to be using wel

fare programs North said he always knew -that the

whole story could not be told by looking just at this

group of husky though unlucky men who got them
selves apprehended

Conner said major weakness of the earlier studies

was that government records were not used Three
recent surveys of illegal immigrants and six recent

studies of government records indicate that some We-

gal-alien populations are making extensive use of tax

supported programs he wrote
The FAIR report cited these findings from the studies

it surveyed

survey of
illegal aliens who sought legal help at

Los Angeles immigration center showed that 12.4 per
cent of the study group indicated they were receiving ór
had received some form of welfare

1961 survey of women who ad live births at Los

Angeles County hospitals showed at least 13.2 percen
were illegal immigrants of Mexin descent and about
one-fifth of the undocumented women reported theif
families used welfare food stams and Medicaid

small survey of non-appre nded Dominican and

Haitian
illegals in New York City bowed that 13 percenj

of the Haitians and 29 percent of he Dominicans tht
viewed had received unemployn insurance 414

Los Angeles Countys hurni resources agenc
recent years identified about illegal aliens

month seeking welfare benefits nd saved $36 miIji

each year by denying them ben ts

California study on ui nployment benefi

showed 49 percent of group Ilegal aliens flIed fo

benefits and 35 percent receive4 iem
An Illinois study contthuiz his year s1igge

that more than $50 million in
nploymet

Insuräi

has been paid annually to tile immigrants tha
state

rain by illegal aliensoæwØ
favoring tighter

WIESSLER

Washington Bureau
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The 100 Club of Houston

Wednesday presented FtmiJy Assistance Officer Jim
anaj

Identified as robbery suspeeJ by witness /g il

YOUth
raliat

---Chkk Stan nd iJJ be setenced to eithe life

prison or death
ClUdiiig Arniljus tO-Year-old son said

young spectator in the capital mur- On Wednesday another customer they saw Guerra do the
shooting

der tal of convicted police killer Ri- the gun store Steven Erhardt- identied ._ The Jury in he cOurt of state District

cardo Guerra was arrested in the Guerra as member of the gang that Judge Henry Oncken was scheduled to

courtroom on suspicion of aggravat escaped from he gun store with the guns deliberate todayon Guerras punishmnt

robbery after witness testified the spec- worth about $15000 and hundreds of
Lator and Guerra helped rob gun store bullets Evidente shoerl tha Guerraslhree months ago

fingerprints were found on conlainer of
His friends and re1atves

sitting with adhesiitQbifld1rue
i--- 1._I

him were
distraught but Enrique Luna victiths

Torres age unavailable appeared non- The testimony of Ehrhardi and Dawchalant Wednesday as sherifrs deputies son who
repeated his statemems to the

took bhlm into custody for
allegedly being jury later in the day was part of the

one of three men ho took about 30 fire-
ProsecutiOns effort to show Guerra wouldarms

including machine
guns from pose continuing threat

society The
the Rebel gun store 18448 Kuykendall jury must make such

finding to sen-
Torres lived with Guerra at 4911 Rusk tence him to deathafter Guerra an illegal alien came here Guerras mother Francisca Guerra Defrom Mexico in May prosecutor Bob Aidape of Monterrey Mexico testified

Moen said
for the defense that her sort has no prevj

Torr was arrested
following the test i- ous criminal recordrnonyofRob Dawsori Klein lndepen The third

sUspect was identified as
dent School District auditor who was in Roberto Flores 27 Guerias allegthe gun store when it was robbed

July accomplice in the
shooting of Harris WftAfter Dawson was asked by prosecu nesses said Flores was the only one of the

tors whether he could identify one of the three to use weapon ir the holdupgun store robbers he
surprised the Detectives speculate that Harris was

packed courtroom Rather than single out shot because lores and Guerra feared
Gueri-a he walked toward the audience they would be arrested in connection with
and pointed at Torres The action took robbery Flores was killed by police
place th hearing without the

jury pres- orncers
during mnhunt that fol owed

-1

ent
the shooting Harris Flores was carryPro8ecutor Moensajd That before Wed ing drivers license stolen in robberyneed.ay authorities had no evidence unconnected to the gun store heistwhich to detain Torre The pistol Guerra was caught withBut he said We suspected we didnt

when he was arrested in the man unt washave far to look for the guI store rob- among the arsenal taken in the the-gun
store rubbery according to testimony

bery suspects based on our knowledge of
But the 9mm pistol used to kill Harris

the case

and passer-by Jose Armijo Sr. 33 was
Tori-es

apparently had been watching found on the body of Floresthe tria for several days and -was among Earlier this week two men who liedof spectators who live near the near Guerra testified that Flores mo
4ock of Walker where Hotton offi- ments before he was shot burst into their
cer James Donald Harris 29 was-shot to dwelling and said he had killed police
death five days after the gun store rob- manbery

One of the those witnesses Jose Luls
Guerra 20 was convicted of

capital Torres -is the brother of the spectator

Prison construction may
ease problem of hOusing _______
BY FRANK XUMJO

placed quotas on the statess most
popu-

Chronicle Staff
_______ otis counties -Those quotas were in effect

until July 27 _______
If JNTSVHj The thrector of tha Additional prison cellsTex Departnt of Correctns says prison release programebt the can-

the ycompeUon of new 500-bd Iiaii t. I.--

Were not

Panasonic.... Fish

Harman Kardog.G
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BY ALAN BERNSTEIN
Chronicle Staff

Five months after he entered the

United States illegally Ricardo Guerra

accused of slaying Houston police offi

cer and passer-by was sentenced tc

death

Guerra 20 wept into red bandana

after jury sentenced him Thursday for

shooting officer James Donald Harris 29

in the head three times July 13

am not guilty Guerra said in Span

ish when routinely asked for comment by

state District Judge Henry Oncken in

whore court the jury convicted Guerra of

capital murder Tuesday
Guerra the 11th criminal defendant

sentenced to death this year in Harris

County had maintained that his com
panion Roberto Flores 27 killed Harris

But several prosecution witnesses in-

eluding 10-year-old Jose Armijo Jr the

son of the slain passer-by said Guerra

was the gunman
The boy also testified that minutes af

ter Harris was shot in the 4900 block of

Walker Guerra ran dowrthe sreeL and

Tired into car driven by the boys father

Jose Armijo Sr. 33 was hit and died

few days later

During manhunt later that night Flo

res shot and critically wounded Houston

officer Larry Trepagnier before being

killed during the ensuing manhunt

Guerra was discovered crouching be
hind horse trailer near pistol that was

among about 30 veapons taken in north

Harris County gun store robbery five

days earlier

One of several sheriffs deputies guard

ing Onckens courtroom Thursday was

Trepagniers wife Virginia

She beamed when the death sentence

was announced Fm very pleased she

said later

Guerras mother here on visa from

Monterrey Mexico where her son lived

until he moved to Houston in May criea

and left the courtroom with his court-ap

pointed attorneys Candelario Elizondo

and Joe Hernandez

Prosecutors Bob Moen and Dick Bax
who gave the trial an unusual twist by

bringing into evidence two life-size man
nequins startling in their resemblance of

Guerra and Flores had told the jury

Guerras execution would protect society

from further violence

Citing Cuerras participation in the gun

store robbery that yielded submachine

guns and silencers Bac said What type
of

person needs these tguns If that

doesnt scare you then somethings

wrong with you.
Moen said the concept of the death pen

alty has biblical origins and comes from

someone little bit larger than us
But Hernandez argued that the jury

should sentence Guerra to lif the only

other option for capital murder to let

him deal with his maler in the peniten

tiary

Elizondo also discouraging the death

penalty decision said the jury should con

sider contradictions in the evidence about

who shot Harris

The use of mannequins which cost

$7000 was significant factor in the

case Hernandez said but he also said

their use may be grounds for reversal

on appeal because they were not used like

other evidence Death penalty cases are

automatically appealed

Several jurors said the use of the man
nequins helped them reach decision on

ho killed Harris

But one juror told defense attorneys af

ter the trial she had nightmares about the

lifelike objects

It was like dead man was staring

back at me she said of Flores likeness

Evidence showed that Flores also par

ticipated in the gun store robbery The

third suspect Enrique Luna Torres was

arrested in Onckens courtroom Wednes

day when witness to the robbery

pointed him out

Bax told the jury that Guerra killed

Harris apparently so he would not be im
plicated in the robbery case

Harris had stopped Guerra and Flores

for reckless driving and was searching

them outside their car when Guerra

reached under his shirt grabbed pistol

and fired it into the officers face wit

nesses said

The two men then fled toward Guerras

nearby residence at 4911 Rusk and the

manhunt started

lOUc1oA Cf c7icL

mflsfg.

Illegal allen is sentenced

to die in officers slaying

F00004f1
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Reaction to

illegal alien raises diplomatic stir

answering qIiestnir1 cii the C15C UII call-ni hsternr

and members cci he Me can med

They were most cnnccrned about he facts and

rowing adverse reaction iii Mexico to the death Sen- attempted tic explain the lacts heard by the jury ftix

tence given here last week to Mexican national Ricardo said

Aldape Guerra br killing lloosIofl police omcer crc- He said the claim in Mcxv an newspaper editorials

ated minor diplomatic stir and prompted Mexican that the case was racist and that Guerra was treated

governor to send three members of the federal Chamber unfairly because he is an clleal alien is also based

of lputies to Texas on fact-Finding mission ignorance because the term illegal alien was never

The deputies tequivalent to brought into evidence in the trial

congressrnenl met with mem- Mexican newspaper and television accounts of

bers of Gov William Oem- Guerra trial were factually hare and sensational

ents Jr.s sta.ff Guerras
press attache Johnson said and widespread enough ti

attorneys the Mexican consul cause embassy staffers to start scr for intornoc

general here and Guerra in

threeav swing through Austin

and Houston

They think the jury made
mistake said Candelario Eli

zondo one of Guerras atlor

nevs They talked to Rcardo

about the facts and they alt

formed the opinion he is nut
Guerra

guilt
Juventino Gonzalez Ramos Dr Luis Todd and Ale Jan

dro Lambreton deputies from the state of Nuevo Leon
returned Wednetday night to Monterre Guerras home

town and will according to Elizondo recommend to

Nuevo ln Guy Alfonso Martinez Dominguez that the

Mexican government pay the legal costs of Guerras

appeal

20 was convicted of shooting Officer James

Inald Harris to death in night of violence July 13 in

which two other persons were also slain

Several prosecution witnesses said they saw .Guerra

shoot and kill Harris and apassing motorist Jose Fran
cisco Armijoafler Guerra and friend Roberto Car
rasco Flores were stopped by Harris for rckless

driving in southeast Houston

Flores was shot to deathby police in the subsequent

manljunt 9mm pistol and gun belonging to Harris

were found on Flores body ________ _________ ____
DeTnse attorneys saidFTores did all the sbtTriªridT

that physical eviderce was insufficent to establish be

yond reasonable doubt that Guerra was guilty
_________________________________________________

Fanned the misunderstanding in Monter.rey and

other Mexican cities that Guerra was to die by lethal

injection today the Mexican press began running front

page stories on the case Neighbors of the Guerra family

in Monterrey held protest Saturday and began fund-

raising drive which reportedly has collected about $200

Last weekend.-aur30O-H1spanics-stagedrprutest

outside the Harris County Jail where Guerra is being

held

The U.S Embassy in Mexico City has been receiving

petitions and delegations from Mexicans concerned that

Guerras execution was imminent and asking for clern

ency press attache Lee Johnson said

The Mexican deputies met with Clements staff Tues

day and Clements news secretary Jon Ford said they

were told that the appeals process had not even begun

and- that itcould be months or years before Guerras

case came before the governor for any clemency action

Several Mexico City and Monterrev repor1.rs were

with the deputies in Houston

Guerras other attorney JoeL Hernandez said one FOOOO4f
czon fur the mt rcc nterpct in Mcxvn ilytut ih c.c

BY TONY FREEMAVrI.E
and BARBARA STRAUCI1

Chronicle Staff

tion

Wire service reporters contacted ri .\lixico City Wed

nesday said front-page story earlier his week in El

So Mexico City newspaper deserbed the Tex
death penalty injection method as slow and extremely

painful
El Nacional another rmijor Mexico City newspaper

quoted an uncle of Guerra as saying his nephews con

viction shows that the U.S seems to be on campaign

to scare off Mexicans froth the U.S

Editorials in most papers
have been saving the trial

was racist and rushed
Earlier this week The Associated Press reported nut

of Mexico City that sister Elvira Aldape

Guerra had asked Mexican judicial officials to pri

vent my brother from being murdered in the United

States

She reportedly told Mexico Citys Excelsior nwspa
per she is sure of her brothers Lnnocence and that he

wasaccused of the slaving only because if the hatred

that exists against undocumented workers

Family and Iricnds of\
Guerra have repirtcdlv asked

Mexican President Jose Lopez lortillti to iroervenc with

Texas authorities on Guerras behalf

According to wire set-vice stories Gucrra left his

borne in Monterrey last April leaving note to his

parents explaining he had sold his hic etc and was Ray

rni for the United States __-__
Family members learned of his vhereaboiits throukh

newspaper reports of the killings

fl
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dro Lambreton deputies from the state of Nuevo Leon was racist and rushed of the leading in
returned Wednesday night to Monterrey Guerras home Earlier this week The Associated Press reported out nient scictit It5 in ItO
to and will according to Elizondo recommend to of Mexico City that Guerras sister Elvira Aldape country particularly ii

Nuevo IASn Go Alfonso Martinez Dominguez that the Guerra had asked Mexican judicial officials In pr- the application it comnpuMexican government pay the legal costs of Guerras vent my brother from being murdered in the United ers and rnallicni
States models to rn

20 was co victed of shooting Officer James She reportedly told Mexico Citys Excelsior newspa- elsuin makingInald Harris to death in night of violence July 13 in
per she is sure of her brothers Innocence and that he William Mii.e dimn

.htch to other persons were also clain was accused of the slaving only because bf the hatred the Colli-gi ot
Severat prosecution witnesses said they saw .Gucrra that exists against undocumented workers Texas AM

shoot and kill Harris and a-passing motorist Jose Fran- Family and friends of\Guerra have reportedly asked
dsco Armijo after Guerra and friend Roberto Car- Mexican President Jose Lopez Portillo to intervene -ith Klirigrnan irntd
rasco Flores were stopped by Harris for reckless Texas authorities on Guerras behalf bachelor degree
driving in southeast Houston ccog to wire Sel-vict clones left his

mathm trum

Flores was-shot to death by police in the subsequent home in Monterres last April lcmving note to his ingion Stale niversit

rnantunt 9mm pistol and gun belonging to Harris
parents explaining he had sold his bicycle and was kav- and his dixtorsl d.grev

were found on Flores body
____________ tn_g for the United States mathematics hiisinm-s

De1ensffevs said didTl the stihahd Fth niembers learned of hhercabouts hJf admrm.ctrai im Th
that physical eviderce was insuflicent to establish be- newspaer reports of the killings rMtr sciences frmmrn

yond reasonable doubt that Guerra was guilty
Fanned by the misunderstanding in Monterrey and

other Mexican cities that Guerra was to die by lethal

injection today the Mexican press began running front

page stories on the case Neighbors of the Guerra family

in Monterrey held protest Saturday and began fund-rat
iexaIns

The U.S Embassy in Mexico Cit has been receiving
petitions and delegations from Mexicans concerned that

Guerras execution was imminent and asking for clem
ency press attache Lee Johnson said

The Mexican deputies met with Clements staff Tues
day and Clements news secretary Jon Ford said the
were told that the appeals process had not even begun

and that it could be Tnonths orvears before uerrat-
case came before the governor fbr anvclemency action

Several Mexico City and Monterrev reporters were
with the deputies in Houston

________
Guerras other attorney Joe Hernandcz said one

reason for the intense interest in Mexico about the cdse
TI BusIness

Is possibly that Guerra ts one of the very kw Mexican
Analyst II

nationals sentenced to deathin Texas
Calculator

minority of states in Mexico ha\-e the death penalty
.-

but it is hardl eŒr nforced

Hernandez said another moti aung fator ix hind t1

Mexican delegations visit was the outcry over the cise .-
in the media and petitions Lv Monterrcv citi.cns

TI 10-Digit
Hernandez said the delegation was pretty well satis-

Desk Tofled that Guerra received fair trial and as accorded
Calculator

--

the same .diie process ------.--
\e still mail TTFJrTjrdosrrmnRjr-1j-------- __________

Prosecutor Dick Bax said the Mexican outcry

largd an outcr from people ignorant of thi Iact cit

-i. ii PI%dEk \L_ 1Jt
the case

8937trx ro pr $7 ruuuO4j
just getting frustrated he said At first as

____________________________________
angry at the allegations he iGuerra had not received 1-
fair trial There is no question in my roind he received
as fair trial as any American citizen

Bax said he and fellow
prosecutor Bob Moen appeared ir A$f

rY7 v-c

kI t3
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Suspect 23 chargd
in slaying of Officer

BY JA DOUGLAS
Pool

.4ouston poticeinta James Ha1Tt5 29 may havp
slain to prevent him from discovering evidence

robbery In car be had stopped Investigators

Harris was shot to death and passing motorist

itically Injured about 10 pin Tuesday In wild
chain 01 shootIngs that left another pouceman wound

edanda.ecowJnmpctdj.d
Ricarde Aldape Cuerra was chard with capi

the Itay at HArris he was not
tiI1ug bout the tmdient said Houston homicide
Detective Doug Bostock who questioned Cuerra
WednesdayBk said Cuerra and companion IdentUled

only afaa Wegal alien with the first name of Wedo
were both armed whoa Harris stopped their car at

Edgewood and Walker In southeast Houston He said

Related ZA
lyFW BOTMAN
Amnond Lees

WAWJCTON Tram appears to be delv

lng to cripple Iraqs oIIbs.ed economy and
omtbly Mash key military oupply route

fro Kuwait U.S tnteillgnce sources_a14_
We1ay

The ultimate objectives of the Irish
lnvut prOOS7 lie friqs tEhe
1mg power already badly shakes by previous

to undermine Iraqi public eppart or
the gIwI4 government and

to_topple
the

regime of President Saddam Hu4n said

th .ource who asked to remain

aaony
The franlam not only wast thefr pound of

flesh In revenge tar Iraqs Invasion of Iran fl

Guea may have shot the oftlcer to keep Mm from

discovering they were armed and that there was evi
of robbery In the car

Homicide Detectiv Larry Webber said Identlflca

Ion belonging to robbery victim was later found In

the car

Police said Harris had stopped the car after

pedestrian told him he had nearly been run down by
ieed1ng car matching Its dencr1pdon

Harris had ordered Cuerras companion out of the

pmaenger sIde 01 the car and wan searching him near
the driver door when Cuerra stepped out from be
hind the steering wheei and fired a- 9mm

pistol- three
time at dow range Into Harris head police said

Harris dIedbfoc he coult he flown to hn.pljJ
said

The second suspect was shot to death by Houston
police about l4 how later after he allegedly shot

Houston policeman Lawrence .1 Trepagnler 29 fivetI In thetest and abdomen Trepegnior was list

mout ago but they obviously want to hu
miliate Hussein and perhaps see Mm re
placeiby nv4jH.i r.glm

majoe qtesrion In the mink oJ
is whether the IraqI torces whick were

boston back from lraniaa errftary they cou

wWregrouç and fight effectively on

Accordlig to American Intelligence op
4E.tn the 1r2n1l have had clear edge In

motivation Inebidleg what was described as
the Lanatichon 01 revolutIonary guard who
threw themselves at the

kyqls
In human-

avagi cT1 Iraqis other hand
were exponed as inp and badly led fighters
the .oiwce saId of the performance earlier In

the war
Both Iraq and Iran are hosttle to the

United States U.S analysts said the Amen
cam stake In th war at the

upper end of the

PenMan Cult lila the Impact Ri outcome will

have th wfty U.Lauppartnd Arab

regimes ha the area lnchxflng Kuwait arid

Saudi Arabia

Thni worry that victorious Iran

might then term on Persian Gulf countries

Iraq

Iranian fence have surprised American

analyses Msc the beginning of the Iran Iraq

war with ability to sustain heavy fight

1mg eves thoegh they have been cut ofl from

isas
so lavad.s/psg flA

F00004f9

25

Related
story/page 17D

/\
PIso 9mpootfpsge _______

Iran vs.Iraq

Invasion designed to topple Hussein

Analysis
Iniudes rntecpePoion by th wvtw
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Lifesize dummies add vivid

twist to murdertial
MARY FLOOD

joal Reporter

States exhibits 19 and 20 stared at the jury

-jiurthg most of the testimony in capital murder

tHai Monday
The exhibits in state District Judge Henry

Onckens court are two $3500 dummies made in

the Likeness of the man on trial and his dead

companion
ff The mannequins purchased by the Hams

County district attorneys office are meant to

show the jury how illegal aliens Ricardo Aldape

uerra and the late Roberto Carras Flores

ooked July 13 when Flores policeman and

jtasser-by were shot to death and another officer

was crltlcaUy wounded

The models are wearing the clothes Guerra

and flores wore that night Flores double wears

jpurple shirt that has bullet holes in the back

and is heavily stained with blood The rnanne

said the total $7000 bill for the models will be

picked up with money collected by the worthless

check division not tax money He said he thinks

the money is well spent

None of the prosecutors
would explain why

they felt it so important to impress the faces and

stature of Guei-ra and Flares on the jury But

defense attorneys Elizondo and Hernandez said

they plan to argue that Flores fired all the shots

and not their client

The models are likely to be used by the state

to have the many witnesses involved point out

the differences they saw between the two sus

pects and who they thought did the shooting

The case began when Houston policeman

James HarrIs 29 pulled over speeding car

Investigators speculated that Guerra and Flores

wanted to hide evidence of robbery and wound

up shooting Harris when they were stopped at

Edgewood and Walker

Witnesses told police that after Harris was

United Scale Models Southwest Inc to make the

life-size imags She said the pair frequent1

scared her during the four .weeks she worked or

them She said shed forget they were in bet

workroom and suddenly see their outlines an

think someone was there

She made the faces ktm death scene an

morgue pictures
of Flores but she got chanc

to see Guerra before sculpting him

The defense attorneys objected to the admis

slon of the exhibits saying they were inflarnma

tory and would just bolster the witnesses Attor

ney Joe Hernandez said the models will serv

no purpose but to inflame the jury because of th

blood-stained shirt and the spooky nature of 1k

likenesses

Defense attorney Candelarlo Elizondo to

mer prosecutor himself said he wasnt too su

prised though Im used to almost anythir

with these guys
Harris County District Attorney John Holm

shot the suspects ran east on Walker and one

raised pistol and fired at Jose Francisco Ar--

mijo 33 of the 4900 block of Rusk who wa.s

driving with two young children in his car He
died several days later of the gunshot wound ..

Police said Flores was killed when the two
suspects were cornered in the 4900 block of---

Rusk Flores allegedly shot Houston policeman

Lawrence Trepagnier who was critically

wounded and hospitalized for weeks

Flores was then shot by other officers at the

scene police said

Monday jurors heard testimony from Assis

tant District Attorney Terry Wilson who hap

pened on Guerra at the scene of Flores death

Wilson said he was marking off the crime scene

when he spotted crouching man pulled his

pistol and eventually got Guerra to lie on the

ground
The state Is scheduled to continue presenting

testimony Tuesday

quin
has oclock shadow and chest hair is

visible at the opening of its shirt

The model of Guerra 20 has much longer

hair than now worn by the man whose likeness it

mirrors The Guerra mannequin also has long

mustache beard and the high cheekbones and

prominent
Adams apple of the man on trial

prosecutors said both models are made to

reflect the mens height and weight the night of

the chain of shootings

When assistant district attorneys Dick Ba.x

and Bob Moen lugged the models Into view Mon

day afternoon there wasnt poker face in the

courtroom

All the DAs were very smirky They figured

they reaUy put something over said Melba

Champjon the artist who sculpted the precise

busts

And the defense attorney looked like he was

really surprises.

Champion worked with her husband Jack of

F0000475
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Trial Postponed
The

capital murder trial of Ricardo
Aldape Guerracharged In the

shooting of Houston policeman waspostponed Wednesday beause
juror was illState District

Judge Henry Oncken
postponeJ testimony one day

Guerra 20 is
charged In the July 13

slaying ofHouston policeman James Harris Police said Hart-is stopped Cuerra and his companion Roberto Carrasflares for
speeding and the policeman may have beenshot because the Suspects wanted to keep him fromseeing stolen goods In the car

motorist passing by also was fatally shot anotherPollcemanwascriticajjywouddd

and killed by Police

F000477
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Study says iHegals

growing burden

to welfare system
WASHINGTON UPII new study warning ille

gal aliens arent bargain says undocumented irnmi

grants are making growing use of American welfare

and unemployment benefits

The Federation for American Immigration Reform

said this weekend that unless legislation is passed to

clamp down on illegal immigration the nation could

face hemorrhage of our social welfare system
Concluding that illegal immigrants arent bar

gain federation study said evidence indicates illegal

aliens pay less in taxes than they get in benefits

fllegal aliens are applying for and receiving hun
dreds of millions of dollars worth of servicesat the

same time these programs are being cut back for disad

vantaged Americans the report said

Illegal immigration was not free lunch it has een
charged to our account and payment is coming due

The report Breaking Down the barriers The

Changing Relationship Between fllegi Immigration

and Welfare was written by the federations executive

director Roger Conner

Among his findingj

About 18.5 percent of undocumented women of Mex
lean descent in Los Angeles interviewed after giving

birth at county hospitals said their families received

welfare according to one survey

In study of illegal aliens in New York City who had

not been caught 13 percent of Haitians and percent of

Dominicans said they received unemployment insur

ance
California survey found nearly 35 percent of he

gal aliens surveyed received unemployment benefits

An Illinois survey still under way suggests ulegals

collect more than $50 million in unemployment benefits

and 46 percent to 51 percent of aliens apiitlons are

from illegal aliens

Conners wrote that although earlier studies showed

illegal aliens used few government services the illegal

population has grown since then new studies use more

accurate methods and the illegal population has

changed
Not only are illegals now more likely to be intact

family nuclear groups than transient Mexican work

ers but todays illegal aliens are more aggressive in

seeking benefits the report said
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ASHINGTOIJ group that favors tight clamps on

Immigration has published report disputing earlier

research that indicated
illegal

aliens are not drain on

overpment social programs such as welfare

lhe report was immediately criticized by Hispanic

group advocates who argue that most aliens here ille

gÆJIare boon to rather than drain on the economy
an should be allowed to stay here legally

.The Federation for American Immigration Reform

hich goes by the acronym FAIR is trying to dispel the

conventional wisdom garnered mostly from studies in

.eØÆrIy to middle 1970s that illegal aliens pay taxes

ut make little use of public services

lJjàt idea is myth that could lead to hemorrhage

toEirsocial welfare system unless illegal immigration

Jstbstantiaily stopped said the report by Roger

executive director of FAIR who has back

as an environmental lawyer

.Jindings of the report dovetail with FAIRs advocacy

fl1uration
restrictions and its opposition to con-

a_a_s

clamps on immigration

cepts such as legalization for perhaps mihio of illegal
aliens being considered by Congress
It seems to be FAIRs standard slick-looking publi

cation that on its face has lot of material but is Just
another slim document to be added to the side of the

restrictionist said Enrique ValenzTiela an immigra
tion specialist for the 1edcan American Legal Defense
and Education.Fund

The FAIR repoit àoes not include original research
but is survey ofrecent studies which Conner said have
not received enoug attention

FAIR said newerstudies show for example that

most 35 percent of
group of illegal aliens in California

received unemployment benefits that 29 percent of he
gal Deminicans in.New York City received welfare that

18.5 percent of undocumented women in Los Angeles
received welfare and that 46 percent to 51 percent of all

unemployment insurance applications by aliens in nil-

mis were from illegal aliens

Like most of the earlier studies those cited by FAIR
are generally analyses restricted to certain types of

illegal aliens in one program in one state or county
during one limited time period But FAIR said they

9e 4-Section Houston Chronicle Monday oceu182

illegal aliens on

favoring tighter
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Illenges earlierresearch

point to change in welfare use by illegal alieis

The first evidence on the subject drawn primarily

from surveys of apprehended illegal aliens suggested

minimal utilization of income transfer programs Con-

ncr wrote Later more representative evidencei

though largely ignored by the media and
politicianS1

indicates much greater utiIizatlon

He contended earlier studies
seriously undezesti-

mated the use of social programs by illegal ailen and

that correction of the false impression is matter of

some importance
David North one of the leading.researchers who did

some of the earlier studies sai1 he generally thinks

FAIR has point although he did ot analyze the FAIR

report in detail think theres tomething to it he

said but added that much more research is needed to be

definitive

North said his own pioneering studies of the 1970s that

showed most of sampling of apprehended illegal aliens

paid taxes and did not take social benefits have been

somewhat misused

He said he cautioned at the time as Conner does in

the current report that sampling of illegal aliens who

were mostly young previously employed males would

naturally have been expected to be paying taxes de
ducted from their paychecks and not to be using wel

fare programs North said he always knew that the

whole story could not be told by looking just at this

group of husky though unlucky men who got them
selves apprehended

Conner said major weakness of the earlier studies

was that government records were not used Three
recent surveys of illegal immigrants and six recent

studies of government records indicate that some i1le

gal-alien populations are making extensive use of tax-

supported programs he wrote

The FAIR report cited these findings from the studies
it surveyed

survey of illegal aliens who sought legal help àt
Los Angeles immigration center showed thatI2.4.per
cent of the study group indicated they were receiving
had received some form of welfare

1981 survey of women who iad live births at LqS

Angeles County hospitals showed at least 13.2 percenk
were illegal immigrants of Mexian descent and abouL

one-fifth of the undocumented women reported theit.

families used welfare food stamis and Medicaid

small survey of non-appre nded Dominican an
Haitian ilegals in New York City howed that 13p
of the Haitians and percent of he Dominicans

viewed had received unemployrr it insurance

Los Angeles Countys hums resources

recent years identified about illegal

month seeking welfare benefits nd saved $36

each year by denying them ben ts

California study on ur riployrnent

showed 49 percent of group Ilegal aliens

benefits and 35 percent receivej iem

An illinois study contihuini his year
that more than $50 million in

has been paid annually to

state

F0000458
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lanine- patrol officer James Don
Id Harris 29 was fataIIy shot

fter stopping car for traffic

iolation about 10 p.m Tuesday

ritish Rail officials

hreafen foflre strikers

LONDON UP State-run British
ali said today it will fire striking unio

Ig1peers Tuesday and shut down
rail system indefinitely unless the

ngkneers return to work
Earlier talks between labor and man

gement failed to result in an agreement
ndlng the 11-day strike which has idled

percent of the nations trains and has
British R.ail.an estimated $144 mil

on in lost revenues

time

Officer Harris was the fourth Houston

police officer to die in the line of duty this

year
More Houston police officers have been

killed in the line of duty so far this year
than in any other year except 1917 when
five mounted policemen were slain in he
Camp Logan riots

iThe officers as well as three soldiers

and 40 civilians were killed when more

Un
guard4à World War Army.truc
tlon site In the area that now Memorial
Park

And notsnce 1978 has more than one
officer been killed In the line.of

duty in

ihgIeyear Oöfflcer wäikilled the

line of duty during 1981 1980 and 1978
Two officers were killed in 1976

Other officers killed thIs year were
Winston Rawlins 23 killed March

29 when gasoline truck exploded in

morning rush hour traffic on the South

Loop 610 while Rawlins was on the shoul
der Issuing traffic citation

William DeLeon 35 also killed

March 29 when vehicle swerved and hit

the officer while his motorcycle was
parked on Southwest Freeway shoulder

Stafford -man was charged with invol

untary manslaughter in connection with
the incident

Detective Wayne Shirley was gunned
down1on April 29 while trying to serve

fugitive warrant on man in southwest

Houston apartment complex Charges of

capital murder were flied in connection

with the shooting
On Friday Houston police officer was

wounded when he tried to apprehend
robbery suspect Officer BA Piel 26
sustained superficial gunshot wound to

the head when he and his partner at

tempted to arrest man who had alleged
ly robbed convience store The suspect
was later apprehended by group of

salesmen from nearby Bill McDavid
Oldsmobile

Rains rule out

need to ration

water for now
From Page

not uncommon for summer thunder
shower

Mayor Kathy Whitmire had said earlier

in the day that the city was cutting back

its own water consumption as an example
to citizens

She said the Parks and Recreation De
partment was stopping routine watering
in parks except between 10 p.m and

am and wa.s.halting such activitias as

hosing downjjdewalks .--
Similar cutbacks by citizens the mayor

said could head off crisis such as

occurred during the summer of 1980
when water use wastRcJ rre
thanthreemonths ruuuqt

Public Works Department officials in

response to scattered complaints of low

pressure and the earlier lack of rain had

prepared several water restriction plans
for the mayor She said she has not de
cided which was most appropriate

Meanwhile about 150 homes in north

east Houston subdivision crvi

Cificer suspect sJi1
FromPag1
his cerw got on the radio to.ty andcal
for help he said

Rayes said as he attempt to reach
police an officer who lives on Walker ran

up and called forassnce-----
Webbet- said witnesses at the scene of

the officers shooting told investigators
the two men fled to nearby residence at
4911 Rusk where the man who had al
legedly shot Harris was said to be living
with several other people

About 12 officers including four homi
cide detectives and eight uniformed pa
trolmen went to the residence and in th
course of search shone flashlight into

darkened open garage behind the
house

man hiding inside fired twice at the
officers striking Trepagnier who has
been on the force since 1978 .The man
then bolted from the garage while firing
four or five more times from 9-nun
pistol striking Trepagnier again The
officer sustained five bullet wounds to the
chest and stomach but managed to

empty his .357 magnum service revolver
before collapsing in the yard

Four other officers meanwhile con
fronted the suspect as he rounded the east
corner of the house and brought him
down under volley of gunfire Witnesses
reported hearing as many as 50 gunshots
during the melee

The other suspect who witnesses said
had

originally used the 9-mm pistol to
shoot both Harris and Armijo had appar
ently at some point handed it to the man
who was killed by officers This suspect
was found hiding underneath horse
trailer 25 feet from the garage He was
arrested without further incIdent and45automatic pistol was confiscated from
his side

Police said Harris pistol was found on
the body of the dead

suspect along withS
the 9mm pistol

The second
suspect 23 was being held

in City Jail today pending capital murder
charges

Investigators could give no clear mo
tve for the

shooting melee although
Webber said the dead suspect had the
drivers license of man who had been
robbed last month Webber said the sus
pects therefore may have been fearful

that Harris was going to apprehend them
in connection with robbery

Little is known of the background of the
two men although homicide Detective
R.M Gatewood who was at the Rusk
scene said both were illegal aliens with
no apparent criminal record who had

_____been.in tha.Houstonaronlya short

fflcer Lawrence Trepagnier
was shot five times in the stom

ich and chest during police

Iearch to find the gunman who

jJ..officer Harris
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SUspects in killing

of officer linked to

gun store robbery
BY JIM CARLTON
Chronicle Staff

The to suspects in thekilling of Houston police

officer and the wounding of another following traffic

check may- have LuIIIInitted the shootingsbecause of

their suspected involvement in gun store robbery in

north Harris County police say

Homicide Detective Larry
Webber said Ricardo Aldape

Guerra 20 of 4911 Rusk and

companion known only as

Guero have beei tentatively

identlfiedas two of the three Hi

spanic gunmen who robbed

RbelGuiis18448 Kuykendahl

of small arsenal of automatic

weapons and ammunition July

Moreover Webber said .45

cat1 near Guerra when he Was Guerra
..-zrr- reeIedwas takenin that-rob--.-----

bery arid it is believed Browning 9mm pistol used to

kill the offiber and wound two other people Tuesday

nigM was also stolen from Rebel

Th oth guns taken In the robbery have not been

Ioated.
wubØtnghetbondiHarrisCOUflty

Jail on capital murder charges In the death of Officer

James Donald Harris wh was killed during traf

_._flcsopkthe4IOObiockof.Walker.
-------GUeTT5s whose full name hasot been

deterrrilnØdwas shot to death by police after he burst

out of hiding from darkened garage behind Guerras.. honwat49Uftusk aboutanhourjfler..the first shooting

He-crtAcaHywounded-Off1cer Lawr2nce .1 Trepagnler._

with the 9mm weapon
Harris was the fourth Houston Police Department

offlckIllŒd in the line of duty thIs year

Police Chief Lee Brown said Thursday he Is

alarmed and concerned over the unprecedented

numberoid and Injuries to ourofficers

Hesaldbeisdisturbedthatpeoplewhoshouldflotbe

in possessioo of fIrearms have access to them He added

that hemteods to maintIn strict enforcement of laws

restricting the carrymg of firearms but iioted that be

ce of .iearth and sethire proble.ms people may

-..
It .timhe said to send out to the

criminal justice system that those Who violate laws on

carryir guns cannot do so with Impunity and that

----eooperation of other segments of the justice system is

essential to curbing incidents of

vioejaoflQ
Brown said it is desirable that officers wear bullet

comment on enactment of

decribd-by detectivea as

illegal aliens who had been in the Houston area only

short time Guerra is from Monterrey Mexico and

PagelO Section

Friday July 16 1982
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other gw taken In the robbery have not been

located
Gerra was being held without bond in Harris County

jacpalmurcha1ntheath01
James Donald Harris wh6 was killed during traf

tp inthe 4100 block of Wa1ker
Guerras -companion whose full naine has riot

deterTælnØdWa$ shot to death by police after he burst

out of hiding from darkened garage behind Guerras

horn 411 3k about.anhOur afterjhefirst shooting

He lily-wow ad Officer LawranceJ.irePaVileL

wlth thelmm weapon
Harris was the fourth HoOston Police Department

offic-klflØd In the line of duty this year

Police Chief Lee Brown said Thursday tie Is

alarmed and concerned over thern unprecedented

number odeatls and Injuries to our officers

He said he is disturbed that people who should not be

in possession of firearms have access to them Re added

that he iitends toinaintain strict enforcmeflt of laws

restricting the carrying of firearms but noted that be

cause- of .earth and seizure poblerns people may
...

he sajd to send message out to the

criminal justice system that those Who violate laws on

carrying guns cannot do so with impunity and that

--------eoopation of other segments of the justice system is

essential to curbing incidents of violence against offi-

cers

Brown said it is desirable that officers wear bullet-

-- oof vests but reserved comrnent on enactment of

______policy mandating them

Gterra and Guero were described by deteetiveLaL

illegal aliens who had been in the Houston area only

short time Guerra is from Monterrey Mexico and

Guowas from an unknown city in Mexico

Detectives saidGuerra shot and critically wounded

passing
motorist as tie and Guero walked from the

the scene of Harris shooting to Guerras residence The

motorist Jose Francisco Armijo 33 of 4924 Rnsk was

in critical condition in Ben Taub Hospital

TreiÆgnier shot five times in the chest and abdomen

was listed in critical but stable conditido in Heimiªitr

Hospital

Webber said police learned of the gun store connec

tion afier being contacted by the Harris County Precinct

constables office which has been investigating the

obbery
Const1es Lt Denise Campbell said composite

sketches based on witnesses descriptions
of the sus

pects
matched photographs

of the two- men made by

Houston pethce

Lt Carrbe.ll said three men entered the gun shop

placed Closed sign they had brought along over the

front door and announced holdup

She said the gunmen armed with Russian-made .45-

caliber automatics tied up the two employees and two

customers back room and took submachine gun

silendØr eigbt automatic weapons and severairoundsof

ammunition

Police are also investigating Guerra and Guero in

four recent rberies in southeast Houston in which they

fit the descriptions of the suspects

Robbery Detective T.A Roman said the two are sus

pected in holdups of two groceries
restaurant and an

individual from June 24 through July

Harris leaves his wife Pam and two daughters

RebŁcca.4 and Megan
fund for themi1y has been set up by the 100 Club

group which aids the dependents of law enforcement

officers killed in the line of duty Contributors should

make checks payable to JD Harris Fund 100 Club

and mail tu them te 100 Club of Houston inc 2200 Post

Oak Blvd Suite Houston Texas 7.7058

Judge questions notice
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says illegals

growing burden

to welfare system
WASHINGTON UPI new study warning ille

gal aliens arent bargain says undocumented irnmi

grants are making growing use of American welfare

and unemployment benefits

The Federation for American Immigration Reform

said this weekend that unless legislation is passed to

clamp down on illegal immigration the nation couid

face hemorrhage of our social welfare system
Concluding that illegal immigrants arent bar

gain federation study said evidence indicates illegal

aliens pay less in taxes than they get in benefits

fllegal aliens are applying for and receiving hun
dreds of millions of dollars worth of servicesat the

same time these programs are being cut back for disad

vantaged Americans the report said

Illegal immigration was not free lunch it has een

charged to our account and payment is coming di
The report Breaking Down the arners The

Changing Relationship Between fliegni Immigration

and Welfare was written by the federations executive

directoT Roger Conner

Among his findin
About 18.5 percent of undocumented women of Mex

ican descent in Los Angeles interviewed after giving

birth at county hospitals said their families received

welfare according to one survey

In study of illegal aliens in New York City who had

not been caught 13 percent of Haitians and percent of

Dominicans said they received unemployment insur

ance
California survey found nearly 35 percent of the-

gal aliens surveyed received unemployment benefits

An Illinois survey still under way suggests Illegals

collect more than $50 million in unefnployment benefits

and 46 percent to 51 percent of aliens apLtiorks are

from illegal aliens

Conners wrote that although earlier studies showed

illegal aliens used few government services the illegal

population has grown since then new studies use more

accurate methods and the illegal population has

changed
Not only are lllegals now more likely to be intact

family nuclear groups than transient Mexican work

ers but todays illegal aliens are more aggressive in

seeking benefits the report said
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